
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Oct 07 2021 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase

Invocation (Josh Stevens, Youth Pastor, High Point Community Church)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. 2021-2022 Drug Free Schools Calendar Winners

Presenters

School Showcase

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

2. C1 - Minutes of Board Workshop on August 24, 2021; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on September
2, 2021

2021 Aug 24 Workshop.pdf

2021 Sept 2 Student Discipline.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Sept 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

School Board Member

3. C2 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS 76th Annual Joint
Conference

Human Resources

4. C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 10 7 2021.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

5. C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 1 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39207
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39163
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39163
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-aug-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-2-regular-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40223
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40223
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40208
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-10-7-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40207


Oct 2021 - Student Travel.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

6. C5 - Resident Clinical Faculty Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and the
University of North Florida

7. C6 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and University of North Florida

8. C7 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Old Dominion University

9. C8 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arkansas State University

Instruction-Climate and Culture

10. C9 -  Proclamation for Red Ribbon Week

Red Ribbon Week Proclamation #22-05.pdf

IN-SEDNET

11. C10 - Lutheran Services Florida Standard Contract #220043

220043 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 103.pdf

Business Affairs

12. C11 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

20 21 Allocation Summary - October 7, 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

13. C12 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - September, 2021

Deletion Report-September, 2021.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

14. C13 -  Contract Renewal - County-Wide Professional Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Architect/Engineer
Agreement

15. C14 - Contract Renewal – Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System
RFP # 18-BA-123

220031 Benefitfocus Amend 2.pdf

Operations

16. C15 - Memorandum of Understanding Among the U.S. Naval Criminal Investigative Service and the Participating
Federal, State, County, and Municipal Agencies in the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project (LEAP) Information
Sharing Initiative Known as the Law Enforcement Information Exchange (LINX)

SOUTHEAST LInX MOU - Nov 2019.pdf

17. C16 - Interlocal Agreement to Sell Low-Priced Fuel to the Clay County Board of County Commissioners for Use of
Fire and Rescue Vehicles in the Keystone Heights Area

Interlocal Agreement with Clay County for Keystone Hts. Fuel.pdf

Operations-Facilities

Page 2 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oct-2021-student-travel.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40217
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40217
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40216
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40220
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40221
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39208
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/red-ribbon-week-proclamation-22-05.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40226
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220043-lutheran-services-florida-lsf-health-systems-amendment-103.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39188
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20-21-allocation-summary-october-7-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39190
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-september-2021.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39199
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39199
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40224
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40224
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220031-benefitfocus-amend-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40222
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40222
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40222
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/southeast-linx-mou-nov-2019.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40225
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40225
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-with-clay-county-for-keystone-hts-fuel_1.pdf


18. C17 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 10.7.21.pdf

19. C18 - Preliminary (Phase II) Plans and Specifications for Elementary School “R”

20. C19 - Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

21. C20 - Project Priority List (P.P.L.) to Identify Eligible Projects for Capital Outlay & Debt Service (C.O. & D.S.)
Expenditures

Project Priority List.pdf

22. C21 - SchoolDude Facility Condition Assessment Contract

School Dude Solutions Contract.pdf

School Dude Contract Review Approval.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update

CESPA Update

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

23. D1 - Human Resources Special Action

Special Action A 10 7 2021.pdf (Confidential)

Operations

24. D2 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Board Policy, to wit:  General Order 9.17, which General Order sets
forth requirements relating to school safety, reporting and training, as amended per the requirements of statutory changes.

9.17 CCDS Policy Safety Measures.pdf

Legal Adv. PH_SB Policy 9.17-9.18.pdf

25. D3 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Board Policy, to wit:  General Order 9.18, which General Order sets
forth the Threat Assesment Policy for All Clay County District schools.

9.18  CCDS Threat Assessment Policy.pdf

Legal Adv. PH_SB Policy 9.17-9.18.pdf

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 3 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40213
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-10721.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40214
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40215
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-4-direct-purchasing-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40218
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40218
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/project-priority-list_3.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40219
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-dude-solutions-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-dude-contract-review-approval.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=40209
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39194
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39194
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/917-ccds-policy-safety-measures.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-ph_sb-policy-917-918.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39195
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=39195
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/918-ccds-threat-assessment-policy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-ph_sb-policy-917-918_1.pdf


School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
2021-2022 Drug Free Schools Calendar Winners

Description
The Drug Free Schools Prevention Calendar has been recognizing local students for their positive drug free messages presented
through their artwork for the past 23 years.  The idea originated during Red Ribbon Week Breakfast in October 1997 and has
continued to be a welcomed tradition that the community has embraced.  The Clay Action Coalition and the Clay County District
Schools are proud to honor the area elementary and junior high students whose drug prevention messages and artwork are
showcased in the 2021-2022 "Be Happy.  Be Brave.  Be Drug Free" Drug Free calendar.
Front Cover Winner           Jayla Attiq 2nd Grade Thunderbolt Elementary
Inside Cover Winner Haven Tomalis 1st Grade Orange Park Elementary
August Miya Von Eberstein          4th Grade Tynes Elementary
September Oakley Bagwell 3rd Grade Shadowlawn Elementary
October Charlotte Trumble Kindergarten         Orange Park Elementary
November Allison Conley 5th Grade Orange Park Elementary
December Emily Grama 4th Grade Shadowlawn Elementary
January Raven Bastin 4th Grade Middleburg Elementary
February Amelia Harris 3rd Grade Orange Park Elementary
March Lilah Cleary 5th Grade Rideout Elementary
April Adalyn Wiley 3rd Grade Orange Park Elementary
May Jensuel Gonzalez 6th Grade Argyle Elementary
June Cooper Mathis 2nd Grade Orange Park Elementary
July Haley Hajost 6th Grade Lake Asbury Elementary
       

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Contact
Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate & Culture (904) 336-6513 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net
Erika Gilbert School Counselor Specialist (904) 336-6879 erika.gilbert@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
N/A

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 4 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of Board Workshop on August 24, 2021; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on September 2, 2021

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2021 Aug 24 Workshop.pdf

2021 Sept 2 Student Discipline.pdf (Confidential)

2021 Sept 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 5 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-aug-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2021-sept-2-regular-mtg.pdf


Page 6 of 354

DRAFT



Page 7 of 354

DRAFT



Page 8 of 354

DRAFT



Page 9 of 354

DRAFT



Page 10 of 354

DRAFT



Page 11 of 354

DRAFT



Page 12 of 354

DRAFT



Page 13 of 354

DRAFT



Page 14 of 354

DRAFT



Page 15 of 354

DRAFT



Page 16 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - School Board Member Out-of-County Travel Expenses Estimated to Attend FSBA/FADSS 76th Annual Joint Conference

Description
Reimbursement of travel expenses for school board members is addressed in Florida Statutes 112.061, 1001.39 and the rules of
the State Board of Education.  Specifically, F.S. 1001.39 reads, “… any travel outside of the district that exceeds $500 requires
prior approval by the district school board to confirm that such travel is for official business of the school district and complies
with rules of the State Board of Education.  Any request for travel outside the state must include an itemized list detailing all
anticipated travel expenses, including, but not limited to, the anticipated costs of all means of travel, lodging, and subsistence. 
Immediately preceding a request, the public must have an opportunity to speak on the specific travel agenda item.” 
School Board members typically attend two in-state conferences yearly that are sponsored by the Florida School Boards
Association.  In addition, periodic technical assistance is provided throughout the fiscal year for all Board members.  Currently,
there is no planned out-of-state travel.
Estimated costs below include registration fees, lodging, meals, mileage, and other incidental expenses.
Estimated Travel Expenses To Attend FSBA/FADSS Annual Joint Conference

Date/Conference
Board
Members
Attending

Location Purpose
Estimated
Cost

2021
FADSS/FSBA
Annual Joint
Conference
(November 30,
2021 - December
3, 2021)

Bolla, Bullock,
Gilhousen,
Kerekes, Clark

Tampa
FL

Official
Business
of the
District

  $6,000

 

Gap Analysis
Professional development provides valuable leadership training for school board members.  The majority of the training, but not
necessarily all training, is provided through the Board’s professional organization, Florida School Boards Association.  Training
includes yearly legislative updates on issues important to school systems in Florida as well as other important topics that impact
public education. 

Previous Outcomes
Board members have attended training and conferences in the past and gained valuable insight on education issues.

Expected Outcomes
Board members will continue to attend upcoming trainings and conferences and gain valuable insight on education issues.

Strategic Plan Goal
2.4 Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Recommend approval

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Page 17 of 354

DRAFT



Financial Impact
$5,500.00 (This is a rough estimate with the assumption that all five board members would have the opportunity to attend.)

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 18 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 10 7 2021.pdf

Page 19 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-10-7-2021.pdf


Page 20 of 354

DRAFT



Page 21 of 354

DRAFT



Page 22 of 354

DRAFT



Page 23 of 354

DRAFT



Page 24 of 354

DRAFT



Page 25 of 354

DRAFT



Page 26 of 354

DRAFT



Page 27 of 354

DRAFT



Page 28 of 354

DRAFT



Page 29 of 354

DRAFT



Page 30 of 354

DRAFT



Page 31 of 354

DRAFT



Page 32 of 354

DRAFT



Page 33 of 354

DRAFT



Page 34 of 354

DRAFT



Page 35 of 354

DRAFT



Page 36 of 354

DRAFT



Page 37 of 354

DRAFT



Page 38 of 354

DRAFT



Page 39 of 354

DRAFT



Page 40 of 354

DRAFT



Page 41 of 354

DRAFT



Page 42 of 354

DRAFT



Page 43 of 354

DRAFT



Page 44 of 354

DRAFT



Page 45 of 354

DRAFT



Page 46 of 354

DRAFT



Page 47 of 354

DRAFT



Page 48 of 354

DRAFT



Page 49 of 354

DRAFT



Page 50 of 354

DRAFT



Page 51 of 354

DRAFT



Page 52 of 354

DRAFT



Page 53 of 354

DRAFT



Page 54 of 354

DRAFT



Page 55 of 354

DRAFT



Page 56 of 354

DRAFT



Page 57 of 354

DRAFT



Page 58 of 354

DRAFT



Page 59 of 354

DRAFT



Page 60 of 354

DRAFT



Page 61 of 354

DRAFT



Page 62 of 354

DRAFT



Page 63 of 354

DRAFT



Page 64 of 354

DRAFT



Page 65 of 354

DRAFT



Page 66 of 354

DRAFT



Page 67 of 354

DRAFT



Page 68 of 354

DRAFT



Page 69 of 354

DRAFT



Page 70 of 354

DRAFT



Page 71 of 354

DRAFT



Page 72 of 354

DRAFT



Page 73 of 354

DRAFT



Page 74 of 354

DRAFT



Page 75 of 354

DRAFT



Page 76 of 354

DRAFT



Page 77 of 354

DRAFT



Page 78 of 354

DRAFT



Page 79 of 354

DRAFT



Page 80 of 354

DRAFT



Page 81 of 354

DRAFT



Page 82 of 354

DRAFT



Page 83 of 354

DRAFT



Page 84 of 354

DRAFT



Page 85 of 354

DRAFT



Page 86 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 87 of 354

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Lakeside Junior
High

4/30/22
Wild
Adventures,
Valdosta, GA

Chorus &
Band

Wild Adventures Classic - Chorus and Band
Competition

Clay High
4/7-10,
2022

New York,
NY

Chorus,
Music, Art,
Band

Students will be exposed to a variety of
performances as well as learn about career
opportunities, and how productions are created and
performed by actual professionals.  

Clay High 10/1/21

South
Effingham
High School,
GA

NJROTC Competition for State qualifier

Fleming Island
High

11/2-3,
2021

Tallahassee,
FL 

Swim
Team

Compete in Regionals

Fleming Island
High

11/12-14,
2021

Stuart, FL
Swim
Team

Compete in State Meet

Fleming Island
High

4/5-10,
2022

University of
Dayton,
Dayton, OH

Winterguar
d

After qualifying for World Championships, the group
would have the opportunity to perform at an
international competition, which would give exposure
to the World-Class performing group and give
valuable feedback from World renowned
ajudicators.  

Keystone
Heights High

3/31-4/2,
2022

Kissimmee,
FL

Varsity
Softball
Team

Softball Tournament

Middleburg High
12/20-21,
2021

Disney World,
Orlando, FL

Band,
Chorus,
Cheer

Performance at Disney World

Oakleaf High 1/6-9, 2022 Atlanta, GA
Girls
Basketball

Basketball Tournament

Oakleaf High
10/22-23,
2021

Marietta, GA NJROTC
Drill competition where Oakleaf will compete against
other schools.

Oakleaf High
3/10-
12,2022

Orlando, FL
Spanish
Students/Cl
asses

Florida State Spanish Conference.  Competition in
Spanish language.

Orange Park
High

12/10-11,
2021

Tallahassee,
FL

Girls
Basketball

Basketball Tournament - learn teamwork and
cooperation

Orange Park
High

12/28-1/1,
2022

Wesley
Chapel, FL &
Tampa, FL

Girls
Basketball

Basketball Tournament - learn teamwork and
cooperation

Orange Park
High

10/29-30,
2021

Leesburg, GA NJROTC Navy Regional Drill Meet

Ridgeview High 10/2/21 Cairo, GA NJROTC Compete in a triathlon
         

Page 88 of 354

DRAFT



Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Oct 2021 - Student Travel.pdf

Page 89 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oct-2021-student-travel.pdf


Page 90 of 354

DRAFT



Page 91 of 354

DRAFT



Page 92 of 354

DRAFT



Page 93 of 354

DRAFT



Page 94 of 354

DRAFT



Page 95 of 354

DRAFT



Page 96 of 354

DRAFT



Page 97 of 354

DRAFT



Page 98 of 354

DRAFT



Page 99 of 354

DRAFT



Page 100 of 354

DRAFT



Page 101 of 354

DRAFT



Page 102 of 354

DRAFT



Page 103 of 354

DRAFT



Page 104 of 354

DRAFT



Page 105 of 354

DRAFT



Page 106 of 354

DRAFT



Page 107 of 354

DRAFT



Page 108 of 354

DRAFT



Page 109 of 354

DRAFT



Page 110 of 354

DRAFT



Page 111 of 354

DRAFT



Page 112 of 354

DRAFT



Page 113 of 354

DRAFT



Page 114 of 354

DRAFT



Page 115 of 354

DRAFT



Page 116 of 354

DRAFT



Page 117 of 354

DRAFT



Page 118 of 354

DRAFT



Page 119 of 354

DRAFT



Page 120 of 354

DRAFT



Page 121 of 354

DRAFT



Page 122 of 354

DRAFT



Page 123 of 354

DRAFT



Page 124 of 354

DRAFT



Page 125 of 354

DRAFT



Page 126 of 354

DRAFT



Page 127 of 354

DRAFT



Page 128 of 354

DRAFT



Page 129 of 354

DRAFT



Page 130 of 354

DRAFT



Page 131 of 354

DRAFT



Page 132 of 354

DRAFT



Page 133 of 354

DRAFT



Page 134 of 354

DRAFT



Page 135 of 354

DRAFT



Page 136 of 354

DRAFT



Page 137 of 354

DRAFT



Page 138 of 354

DRAFT



Page 139 of 354

DRAFT



Page 140 of 354

DRAFT



Page 141 of 354

DRAFT



Page 142 of 354

DRAFT



Page 143 of 354

DRAFT



Page 144 of 354

DRAFT



Page 145 of 354

DRAFT



Page 146 of 354

DRAFT



Page 147 of 354

DRAFT



Page 148 of 354

DRAFT



Page 149 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Resident Clinical Faculty Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County District Schools and the University of
North Florida

Description
As part of a collaborative effort to simultaneously improve PreK-12 education and teacher preparation, The University of North
Florida and the School Board of Clay County, Florida agree cooperatively to provide two Resident Clinical Faculty to the
Professional Development Schools Network during the 2021-2022 academic year. The program will provide the District with an
opportunity to implement new organizational structures and ways of teaching and learning which will enhance student learning
and link professional development with Pre K-12 student learning.
At the same time, this program provides an opportunity for the University of North Florida College of Education and Human
Services to enhance the internship and field experience component of its teacher preparation program by forging stronger
linkages with the District and by providing opportunities for teams of university students to work with teachers who are
implementing effective and innovative teaching strategies.
Based on the 9 Essentials for Professional Development Schools as outlined by the National Association for Professional
Development Schools, Resident Clinical Faculty typically mentor approximately 100 interns/pre-interns from the University of
North Florida who are seeking certification in teaching at three PDS schools: Grove Park Elementary, Orange Park Junior High
and Orange Park High Schools.

Gap Analysis
Without the Memorandum of Understanding with the University of North Florida for the PDS model, pre-service interns/pre-
interns would not receive the level of coaching, support and mentorship that accompanies the PDS model.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools and the University of North Florida have partnered in providing support to pre-service teachers for
many years (the program formerly known as SPRINT).  Since 2017, the institutions have partnered to provide more intensive
support for pre-service teachers through the PDS Model.

Expected Outcomes
As a result of the PDS partnership with the University of North Florida, future teachers of Clay County students will gain more
on-the-job learning and be better prepared for the rigors of the classroom.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.   
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the Resident Clinical Faculty Memorandum of Understanding between Clay County
District Schools and the University of North Florida.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay

Financial Impact
$ 65,400.90-  50% of the total salary and benefits funded by general funds

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 150 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and University of North Florida

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and University of North Florida (UNF) for UNF students to participate
in internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their careers.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 26 Colleges/Universities, including UNF.  This agreement will
renew the agreement previously in place for the next 5 years.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  UNF usually places between 25-75 pre-intens and interns in CCDS each year.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement  between Clay County District Schools and University of North
Florida.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 151 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Old Dominion University

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Old Dominion University (ODU) for ODU students to participate in
internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 26 Colleges/Universities and this will be the first time an agreement
has been made with Old Dominion University.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  Old DOminion University is currently requesting the placement of one student.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
 Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement  between Clay County District Schools and Old Dominion
University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 152 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Affiliation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Arkansas State University

Description
This agreement is between Clay County District Schools and Arkansas State (ASU) for ASU students to participate in
internships, practicums, and observations under the direction of a certified educator in Clay County schools.

Gap Analysis
Without this agreement, interns and pre-interns cannot be placed in Clay County District Schools and would thereby prevent
potential teacher candidates from choosing Clay to begin their career.

Previous Outcomes
Clay County District Schools currently has agreements with 26 Colleges/Universities and this will be the first time an agreement
has been made with Arkansas State University.

Expected Outcomes
Placement of interns provides teacher candidates with real-world experiences that better prepares them for the rigors of
classroom teaching.  Arkansas State is currently requesting the placement of one student.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5: Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.  
Strategy 5.1: Recruit, screen, hire, and retain top candidates that reflect the diversity of each school, our district, and community.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the agreement  between Clay County District Schools and Arkansas State
University.

Contact
Roger Dailey,  Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904  roger.dailey@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$0.00

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 153 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 -  Proclamation for Red Ribbon Week

Description
The Red Ribbon Campaign® is the oldest and largest drug prevention program in the nation reaching millions of young people
during Red Ribbon Week® each year. We celebrate Red Ribbon Week, October 25-29, to affirm our commitment to live drug
free. We celebrate those who live without drugs as well as those who choose to leave drugs behind and live drug free. This week
is designated to talk to our students about choosing a healthy lifestyle to include a healthy diet, staying active, coping strategies
for stress, and choosing to live drug free. This year's theme is "Drug Free Looks Like Me." The theme was chosen because it
perfectly captures how all of us must do our individual parts to keep our communities safe, healthy and Drug-Free. All segments
of the community, health care workers, police officers, educators, school bus drivers, parents… people just like you and me, are
examples of what we can achieve through self-dedication, care and commitment. The theme encourages everyone to use their
voice to make a difference no matter who they are, where they’re from or what they do.

Gap Analysis
This proclamation will promote the School Board of Clay County's commitment to creating a safe, healthy, and drug free school
community.  

Previous Outcomes
Yearly students are exposed to lessons surrounding the affects of drugs, alchol and making healthy life style choices.

Expected Outcomes
Students will gain knowledge to assit them with making healthy life style choices.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
The School Board of Clay County will approve the proclamation to support Red Ribbon week.

Contact
Laura Fogarty, Director of Climate & Culture
 laura.fogarty@myoneclay.net
904-336-6513

Financial Impact
0

Review Comments

Attachments

Red Ribbon Week Proclamation #22-05.pdf

Page 154 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/red-ribbon-week-proclamation-22-05.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION #22-05 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, alcohol and drug abuse affect individuals, families, and communities across the nation; and  
 

WHEREAS, it is imperative that visible, unified efforts by community members be launched to prevent drug 
abuse; and 
 

WHEREAS, Red Ribbon Week offers students, schools, and the community the opportunity to demonstrate 
their commitment to drug-free lifestyles; and 
 

WHEREAS, Red Ribbon Week will be celebrated in schools and communities across the nation on October 
25-29; and 
 

WHEREAS, businesses, government, law enforcement, media, health care providers, religious institutions, 
schools, and other community-based organizations will demonstrate their commitment to healthy, drug-free 
lifestyles by wearing red ribbons and participating in drug prevention activities; and 
 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
commit its resources to ensure the success of Red Ribbon Week and encourage everyone to participate 
in drug prevention education activities, not only during Red Ribbon Week, but also throughout the year. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 7th day of 
October, 2021. 
        
 
 

ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Mary Bolla, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida       
      
 
 
 

Page 155 of 354

DRAFT



 
 

Page 156 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Lutheran Services Florida Standard Contract #220043

Description
SEDNET is an acronym for The Multi Agency Network for Students With Emotional and Behavioral Disabilities, which agency
is under the supervision and control of Clay County District Schools.  Lutheran Services Florida, Inc. d/b/a/ LSF Health Systems,
LLC ("LSF") has maintained a contractual relationship with The School Board of Clay County, Florida through SEDNET for
several years.  The contract allows LSF, a non-profit corporation which obtains funds from both federal sources and pursuant to a
contract with the State of Florida, to then contract with regional SEDNET units, of which the Clay County School District is one,
to provide mental and behavioral health resources to students in need throughout the Northeast Florida region which consists of
Duval, Clay, and Nassau counties.  SEDNET acts as an independent contractor to LSF and provides the contracted behavioral
and mental health services through its employees, agents, and subcontractors after which the services are billed to LSF.  The
limit of LSF financial commitment and responsibility, as well as the requirements binding SEDNET are the subject of the
attached contract.  

Gap Analysis
SEDNET shall perform all tasks and provide units of deliverables, including reports, findings, and drafts, as specified in the
contract.  The purpose of this funding is to provide non-Medicaid mental health services to families to reduce the need for higher
levels of care.  The goal is to keep children in their least restrictive environment.

Previous Outcomes
These funds have been used to meet the individualized needs of students requiring supportive mental health and behavioral
services.  The previous contract was not to exceed the amount of $951,158.00.

Expected Outcomes
Students currently being served by SEDNET will continue to be provided the mental health supports to maintain in their least
restrictive environment.  The amended contract is not to exceed the amount of $947,784.00.

Strategic Plan Goal
To allow SEDNET to continue to provide the programs and services of the Family Services Planning Team (FSPT) and the
Children and Family Staffings (CFS).  SEDNET will continue to provide individualized mental health services and devise
individualized plans for students with significant mental health needs.

Recommendation
Approve the contract amendment.

Contact
Kathryn Lawrence, SEDNET, kathryn.lawrence@myoneclay.net, (904) 336-4400

Financial Impact
The amendment shall decrease contract amount by $3,374.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

220043 Lutheran Services Florida (LSF Health Systems) - Amendment 103.pdf

Page 157 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220043-lutheran-services-florida-lsf-health-systems-amendment-103.pdf


Page 158 of 354

DRAFT



Page 159 of 354

DRAFT



Page 160 of 354

DRAFT



Page 161 of 354

DRAFT



Page 162 of 354

DRAFT



Page 163 of 354

DRAFT



Page 164 of 354

DRAFT



Page 165 of 354

DRAFT



Page 166 of 354

DRAFT



Page 167 of 354

DRAFT



Page 168 of 354

DRAFT



Page 169 of 354

DRAFT



Page 170 of 354

DRAFT



Page 171 of 354

DRAFT



Page 172 of 354

DRAFT



Page 173 of 354

DRAFT



Page 174 of 354

DRAFT



Page 175 of 354

DRAFT



Page 176 of 354

DRAFT



Page 177 of 354

DRAFT



Page 178 of 354

DRAFT



Page 179 of 354

DRAFT



Page 180 of 354

DRAFT



Page 181 of 354

DRAFT



Page 182 of 354

DRAFT



Page 183 of 354

DRAFT



Page 184 of 354

DRAFT



Page 185 of 354

DRAFT



Page 186 of 354

DRAFT



Page 187 of 354

DRAFT



Page 188 of 354

DRAFT



Page 189 of 354

DRAFT



Page 190 of 354

DRAFT



Page 191 of 354

DRAFT



Page 192 of 354

DRAFT



Page 193 of 354

DRAFT



Page 194 of 354

DRAFT



Page 195 of 354

DRAFT



Page 196 of 354

DRAFT



Page 197 of 354

DRAFT



Page 198 of 354

DRAFT



Page 199 of 354

DRAFT



Page 200 of 354

DRAFT



Page 201 of 354

DRAFT



Page 202 of 354

DRAFT



Page 203 of 354

DRAFT



Page 204 of 354

DRAFT



Page 205 of 354

DRAFT



Page 206 of 354

DRAFT



Page 207 of 354

DRAFT



Page 208 of 354

DRAFT



Page 209 of 354

DRAFT



Page 210 of 354

DRAFT



Page 211 of 354

DRAFT



Page 212 of 354

DRAFT



Page 213 of 354

DRAFT



Page 214 of 354

DRAFT



Page 215 of 354

DRAFT



Page 216 of 354

DRAFT



Page 217 of 354

DRAFT



Page 218 of 354

DRAFT



Page 219 of 354

DRAFT



Page 220 of 354

DRAFT



Page 221 of 354

DRAFT



Page 222 of 354

DRAFT



Page 223 of 354

DRAFT



Page 224 of 354

DRAFT



Page 225 of 354

DRAFT



Page 226 of 354

DRAFT



Page 227 of 354

DRAFT



Page 228 of 354

DRAFT



Page 229 of 354

DRAFT



Page 230 of 354

DRAFT



Page 231 of 354

DRAFT



Page 232 of 354

DRAFT



Page 233 of 354

DRAFT



Page 234 of 354

DRAFT



Page 235 of 354

DRAFT



Page 236 of 354

DRAFT



Page 237 of 354

DRAFT



Page 238 of 354

DRAFT



Page 239 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2021-2022

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2021-2022 school year. 
The School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes.

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

20 21 Allocation Summary - October 7, 2021.pdf

Page 240 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/20-21-allocation-summary-october-7-2021.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS 

 2021-2022 SUMMARY

Board Meeting, October 7, 2021

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2021-2022 ACTIONS

General Funds

WEC-0241 0.9 ESE Assistant, Behavioral Health Program Needs $16,015 $5,168 $21,183

LJH-0351 0.9 ESE Assistant, Behavioral Health Program Needs ($16,015) ($5,168) ($21,183)

OHS-0661 1.0  School Secretary, 12 Month Program Needs $26,130 $8,432 $34,562

TOTAL: $26,130 $8,432 $34,562

Federal Funds  (IDEA 420/4100.2)

LJH-0351 0.9 ESE Assistant, Behavioral Health Program Needs ($16,015) ($5,168) ($21,183)

OVE-0621 0.9 ESE Assistant, Behavioral Health Program Needs $16,015 $5,168 $21,183

TOTAL: $0 $0 $0

Federal Funds (UniSIG 420/4152.2)

CEB-0071 2.0  Curriculum Coach Program Needs $90,070 $29,066 $119,136

TOTAL: $90,070 $29,066 $119,136

Federal Funds (ESSER II 443/4811.2)

OLJ-0611 0.6 Computer Lab Assistant Program Needs $11,131 $3,592 $14,722

TOTAL: $11,131 $3,592 $14,722

Pending Board Approval 10/07/2021

Page 241 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Deletion of Certain Items Report - September, 2021

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted.  These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair.  These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated.  Deletions are for property items received in
the month of August, 2021.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05.

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal.  Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes.  All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability. 

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - September, 2021 as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property.  Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

Deletion Report-September, 2021.pdf

Page 242 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-report-september-2021.pdf


Depreciation

09/30/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0232 GROVE PARK ELEMENTARY

7,046.00 7,046.00CART:MILK MOBILE-ATLAS METAL B Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 10/21/201011000219
7,046.007,046.00

LCTN 0261 DOCTORS INLET ELEMENTARY
2,099.25 2,099.25MOWER: SELECT SERIES X300 W/42 Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 03/08/200700091359

2,099.252,099.25

LCTN 0311 KEYSTONE HEIGHTS JR/SR HIGH
2,973.67 2,973.67SCRUBBER:FLOOR MINUTEMAN Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 09/05/199500060294
2,388.75 2,388.75SWEEPER/KLEEN SWEEP:BATTERY OP Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 05/07/199900066986
4,592.00 4,592.00SCRUBBER: 240X; 24V W/BATTERY Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 05/11/200600087188

9,954.429,954.42

LCTN 0341 CLAY HIGH SCHOOL
2,995.10 2,995.10AERATOR:RYAN TRACAIRE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 11/29/200100075444

2,995.102,995.10

LCTN 0351 LAKESIDE JUNIOR HIGH
3,839.16 3,839.16DESK:LIBRARY CIRCULATION Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 05/11/200000071597

3,839.163,839.16

LCTN 0361 ORANGE PARK JR HIGH
2,297.00 2,297.00OVEN: CONVECTION POWER SAVE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 08/10/198700036336
2,297.00 2,297.00OVEN: CONVECTION POWER SAVE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 08/10/198700036337
5,745.15 5,745.15REFRIGERATOR: TRAULSEN REACH-I Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 09/22/200500086967

10,339.1510,339.15

LCTN 0371 WILKINSON JR HIGH
2,447.00 2,447.00TABLE:HOT SERVING MOBILE (FOUR Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 12/12/198600042901
1,959.00 1,959.00CABINET HOT W/CASTERS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 03/25/199600062427
2,133.00 2,133.00CABINET:CRESCOR HOT W/CASTERS Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 06/29/200000072179
1,470.00 1,470.00LAMINATOR: HEATSEAL ULTIMA - G Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 10/11/200700092047

8,009.008,009.00

LCTN 0531 THUNDERBOLT ELEMENTARY
3,115.00 3,115.00PIANO:YOUNG CHANG UPRIGHT W/BE Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 09/14/200000074902

3,115.003,115.00

09/30/202109/01/2021Date Range 113:58:3009/02/2021 Page 243 of 354

DRAFT



Depreciation

09/30/2021

Acquisition PurchaseDisposalDisposal
ValueDate AmountDateDescriptionTag

Monthly Deletion Report
For Month Ending:

Clay County Public Schools

Method
LCTN 0551 FLEMING ISLAND HIGH SCHOOL

1,196.00 1,196.00COPIER: DIGITAL - RICOH MP201S Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentJunk/Parts  09/02/2021 11/30/201112000165
1,196.001,196.00

LCTN 9021 MAINTENANCE DEPARTMENT
1,859.00 1,859.00CABINET HOT Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 02/24/199200045948
7,046.00 7,046.00CART:MILK MOBILE-ATLAS METAL B Furniture,Fixtures & EquipmentSurplus Sale  09/02/2021 10/21/201011000218

8,905.008,905.00

57,498.08
Totals for Deletion Report

57,498.08

Note:AUGUST 2021 DELETIONS
Disposal Method Descriptions:

JUNK/PARTS - Part(s) of an asset are used and remainder of part(s) are sold, recycled or disposed

TRADE-IN - Vendor issues a credit towards a new purchase

THEFT/VANDALISM - Items stolen or broken (police report attached)

MISSING - Items lost and are not found during property inventory (Annually)

SURPLUS SALE - Items that are outdated, not working or obsolete.  Items are either sold, recycled or disposed

ENTERED IN ERROR- Not used

TRANSFER/DONATION - From Clay County District to an Outside Agency (Approved by Board or Superintendent)

DESTROYED - Fire/Natural Disaster, etc.

Total Software
0.00

Total Audio Visual
0.00

Total Vehicles
0.00

Total Furniture
57,498.08

THRESHOLD (ex. $750 TO $1000)

09/30/202109/01/2021Date Range 213:58:3009/02/2021 Page 244 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 -  Contract Renewal - County-Wide Professional Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Architect/Engineer Agreement

Description
Renew Contract as required per FS 287, DOE 6A-1.012 and School Board Policy
County-Wide Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Architect/Engineer Agreement:  Contract Period is October 1, 2021
through October 1, 2022. The contract period is for 1 year and is the first renewal option.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Contract was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and
products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Extend renewal as follows:
County-Wide Mechanical/Electrical Engineering Services Architect/Engineer Agreement: 
Listed in alphabetical order:

Graef, 2300 Maitland Center Parkway Suite 210, Maitland, Florida 32751-
H2 Engineering, 2246 NW 40th Terrace Suite B, Gainesville, Florida 32605-
Haddad Engineering, Inc., 3030 Hartley Rd Suite 290, Jacksonville, Florida 32257-
Mitchell Gulledge Engineering, Inc., 210 SW 4th Ave, Gainesville, Florida 32601-
TLC Engineering Solutions, 1301 Riverplace Blvd, Jacksonville, Florida 32207-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
All funding necessary for the Mechanical/Electrical fees resulting from this contract are budgeted within the Educational
Facilities Plan. Fiscal impact will be based on the budget of the individual projects.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 245 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - Contract Renewal – Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System RFP # 18-
BA-123

Description
Contract Renewal – Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System RFP #18-BA-123:
The Agreement/Order Form was effective as of June 11, 2018 and had an initial subscription term of 5 years. Amendment No. 2
is extending Agreement/Order Form through July 18, 2025 and reducing the annual amount by $40,000.  

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
Original Contract was Board approved and has been used successfully during the past term to provide quality services and
products to the district.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board; we expect the contractors and vendors? to continue providing quality services and products at the
same terms and conditions as when the original Bid were awarded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Contract Renewal – Benefitfocus Agreement for Web Based Enrollment and Eligibility Management System: 

Benefitfocus, 100 Beneditfocus Way, Charleston, SC 29492-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
There is no financial impact to the District due to the agreement with the Bailey Group that was Board Board approved on March
4, 2021

Review Comments

Attachments

220031 Benefitfocus Amend 2.pdf

Page 246 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/220031-benefitfocus-amend-2.pdf


Page 247 of 354

DRAFT



Page 248 of 354

DRAFT



Page 249 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Memorandum of Understanding Among the U.S. Naval Criminal Investigative Service and the Participating Federal, State,
County, and Municipal Agencies in the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project (LEAP) Information Sharing Initiative
Known as the Law Enforcement Information Exchange (LINX)

Description
The Memorandum of Understanding Among the U.S. Naval Criminal Investigative Services and the Participating Federal, State,
County and Municipal Agencies in the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project (LEAP) Information Sharing Initiative
known as the Law Enforcement Information Exchange (LINX).  Sharing Criminal Justice Information enables the sharing of
vital criminal justice information with many Law Enforcement Agencies across the Southeastern United States in order to ensure
Safe Schools.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the Memorandum of Understanding with the U.S. Naval Criminal Investigative Services and the Participating Federal,
State, County and Municipal Agencies in the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project (LEAP) Information Sharing
Initiative Known as the Law Enforcement Information Exchange (LINX).

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Kenneth Wagner, Chief of Police, (904) 336-0101, kenneth.wagner@myoneclay.net, 904-336-0101

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

SOUTHEAST LInX MOU - Nov 2019.pdf

Page 250 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/southeast-linx-mou-nov-2019.pdf


 

Southeast LInX MOU 1 11-2019 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
AMONG THE U. S. NAVAL CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIVE SERVICE AND THE 

PARTICIPATING FEDERAL, STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL AGENCIES IN THE 
SOUTHEAST LAW ENFORCEMENT ALLIANCE PROJECT (LEAP) INFORMATION 

SHARING INITIATIVE KNOWN AS THE LAW ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION 
EXCHANGE (LINX) 

 
A. PURPOSE. 
 

1. This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by the U. S. Naval 
Criminal Investigative Service and the Federal, State, and local law enforcement 
agencies in the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project (LEAP) who are 
participating in an information sharing initiative known as the Law Enforcement 
Information Exchange (LInX) for the operation of a regional warehouse of databases. 
The purpose of this MOU is to set forth the policy and procedures for the use of the 
LInX by the participating parties, including the ownership and control of the information 
within the system, which may be contributed by each party for use by the LInX and the 
participating agencies. 
 

2. The driving impetus for this initiative and MOU is to further the wars against 
crime and terrorism in the wake of the September 11th terrorist attacks against the 
United States. This includes: identifying and locating criminals, terrorists and their 
supporters; identifying, assessing, and responding to crime and terrorist risks and 
threats; and otherwise preventing, detecting, and prosecuting criminal and terrorist 
activities.  To achieve these ends, it is essential that all Federal, State, and local law 
enforcement agencies cooperate in efforts to share pertinent information. The LInX will 
integrate relevant records of the parties within a single warehouse of databases, 
effectively providing each participating agency with a single source for regional law 
enforcement information. For security purposes, LInX access will be via a separate, 
sensitive but unclassified server.  
 

3. The LInX will be available for use by participating law enforcement agencies in 
furtherance of authorized law enforcement activities as well as the prevention and 
detection of terrorist risks and threats. Utilizing the LInX capabilities will significantly 
advance public safety and security, and will enhance the protection of this Nation’s 
critical strategic resources in the Southeast.  
 
B.  PARTIES. 
  
 

1. The parties to this MOU are the U. S. Naval Criminal Investigative Service and 
          law enforcement agencies within the Southeast, Federal Law 
          Enforcement Agencies (via N-DEx web service), and Department of Defense 
          Law Enforcement Agencies. 
 

a. Participating agencies will also have access to the other fourteen (14) 
regional LInX systems. 

Page 251 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 2 11-2019 

 
2. The parties agree that maximum participation by all eligible law enforcement 

agencies will strengthen the purposes of this MOU. Accordingly, the parties anticipate 
and desire that other eligible agencies will join this MOU in the future. An eligible 
agency must apply for and be approved by the Governance Board. The Governance 
Board shall establish criteria for eligibility to join; such as but not limited to security 
compliance, data accountability, technical capability, and operational history. A joining 
agency once approved by the Governance Board shall also be considered a party and 
shall have the same rights, privileges, obligations, and responsibilities as the original 
parties.  
 
C. POINTS OF CONTACT. Each party shall designate an individual as the party’s point 

of contact (POC) for representing that party in regard to the MOU.  A party may 
change its POC at any time upon providing written notification thereof to the POCs 
of all other parties. 

 
D. AUTHORITY. 
 

1. Authority for the Naval Criminal Investigative Service to enter into this MOU 
includes Department of Defense (DoD) Instruction 5505.3 dated July 11, 1986 and 
SECNAVINST 5520.3B dated January 4, 1993; 

 
2. Authority for Florida state, county, and local agencies to enter into this MOU 

includes Sections 943.03(5), 943.03(14), 943.0312(2), and 943.0544(5), Florida 
Statutes (2004).  

 
3.  Authority for Georgia state, county, and local agencies to enter into this MOU 

includes OCGA 36-69-1, et seq. The Georgia Mutual Aid Act and the Georgia 
Constitution, Article 9, Section 3, provides local departments the authority to enter into 
MOU's.  

 
4.   Authority for Alabama state, county, and local agencies to enter into this 

MOU includes Alabama Code, Title 36, Chapter 11, Article 3 Agreements and 
Cooperation by Law Enforcement Agencies 

 
5.   Authority for Mississippi state, county, and local agencies to enter into this 

MOU includes MS Code 45-27-7, Duties and functions of the Justice Information Center 
 
6.   Authority for Louisiana state, county, and local agencies to enter into this 

MOU includes Title 44 RS 44:3D Records of prosecutive, investigative, and law 
enforcement agencies, and communications districts. 

 
MISSION/OBJECTIVES.  This initiative seeks to capture the cumulative 

knowledge of the participating law enforcement agencies in the Southeast in a 
systematic and ongoing manner to maximize the benefits of information gathering and 
analysis to prevent and respond to terrorist and criminal threats; to support preventive, 
investigative and enforcement activities; and to enhance public safety and force 

Page 252 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 3 11-2019 

protection for the Nation’s critical infrastructure in the Southeast. The specific objectives 
of the LInX are to: 
  

1. Integrate specific categories of existing law enforcement, criminal justice and 
investigative data from participating agencies in near real time within one data 
warehouse that will be accessible by all participating agencies. 
 

2. Dramatically reduce the time spent by participating agency personnel in 
search and retrieval of relevant data by providing query and analytical tools. 
 

3. Provide the means for the participating agencies to develop analytical products 
to support law enforcement, criminal investigation, force protection, and counter-
terrorism operational and investigative activities. 
 

4. Provide an enhanced means for the participating agencies to produce strategic 
analytical products to assist administrative decision-making processes for area law 
enforcement executives. 
 
F. CONCEPT. 
 

1. The LInX is a cooperative partnership of Federal, State, county, and local law 
enforcement agencies, in which each agency is participating under its own individual 
legal status, jurisdiction, and authorities, and all LInX operations will be based upon the 
legal status, jurisdiction, and authorities of the individual participants.  The LInX is not 
intended to, and shall not, be deemed to have independent legal status.     
 

2. The LInX will become a central, electronic repository of derivative Federal, 
State, county, and local law enforcement and investigative data, with each party 
providing for use copies of information from its own records which may be pertinent to 
LInX’s mission. Once the database warehouse is populated and properly structured, the 
system will function with querying and analytical tools in support of law enforcement 
activities, criminal investigations, force protection, and counter terrorism, and for the 
development of reports by the participating agencies for the use of their executive 
decision makers. 
 

3. The LInX database warehouse is currently located at the Northeast Florida 
HIDTA site in Jacksonville, Florida. This site meets the requirements for security 
accreditation, and contains “Sensitive But Unclassified” (SBU) information from the 
records systems of the MOU parties.  All parties contributing data to the LInX will have 
equal access to the LInX functionality via secure Internet connections for read, 
analytical and lead purposes only. All other regional LInX database warehouses are 
consolidated at the Alexandria, Virginia Police Department, for major cost savings for 
the Naval Criminal Investigative Service, which maintains the database warehouses. 
 
G. OWNERSHIP, ENTRY, AND MAINTENANCE OF INFORMATION. 
 

Page 253 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 4 11-2019 

1. Each party retains sole ownership of, exclusive control over content and sole 
responsibility for the information it contributes, and may at will at any time update or 
correct any of its information in LInX, or delete it from the LInX entirely. All system 
entries will be clearly marked to identify the contributing party. 
 

2. Just as each party retains sole ownership and control of the information it 
contributes, so does a party retain sole ownership and control of the copies of that 
information replicated in the LInX. 
 

3. The contributing party has the sole responsibility and accountability for 
ensuring that no information is entered into LInX that was obtained in violation of any 
Federal, State, or local law applicable to the contributor. 
 

4. The contributing party has the sole responsibility and accountability for 
ensuring compliance with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and procedures 
applicable to the party’s entry and sharing of information into the LInX. 
 

5. The contributing party has the sole responsibility and accountability for making 
reasonable efforts to ensure the accuracy upon entry, and continuing accuracy 
thereafter, of information contributed. Each party will notify the contributing party and 
the Governance Board of any challenge to the accuracy of the contributing party’s 
information. 
 

6. Because information housed by LInX will be limited to duplicates of information 
obtained and separately managed by the entering party within its own record system(s), 
and for which the contributing party is solely responsible and accountable, information 
submitted by the participating parties shall not be altered or changed in any way, except 
by the contributing party.  The contributing party should not make any changes to the 
data in the LInX warehouse that is not mirrored within the contributing party’s source 
records. 
 

 7. The LInX will thus only be populated with mirrored information derived from 
each contributing party’s “own records,” and is not in any manner intended to be an 
official repository of original records, or to be used as a substitute for one, nor is the 
information in the system to be accorded any independent record system status.  
Rather, this electronic system is merely a means to provide timely access for the law 
enforcement parties to information that replicates existing files/records systems. 
  

8. To the extent that any newly discovered links, matches, relationships, 
interpretations, etc., located in the analysis of LInX information may be relevant and 
appropriate for preservation as independent records, it will be the responsibility of the 
accessing party to incorporate such information as records of the accessing party in the 
party’s own official records system(s) in accordance with that party’s records 
management processes (subject to obtaining any contributing party’s consent as 
provided below). A party that desires to incorporate in its own separate records 
information contributed by another party, including any analytical products based on 

Page 254 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 5 11-2019 

another party’s information, must first obtain the data directly from the entering party 
and obtain the entering party’s express permission to use the data. 

 
9. Commercially available references, public source information, and software 

applications, such as commercial directories, census data, mapping applications, and 
analytical applications are considered to be nonrecord material and will be maintained in 
accordance with applicable contracts and/or licensing agreements.  To the extent that 
any such information is relevant and appropriate for preservation as independent 
records, it will the responsibility of the accessing party to incorporate such information 
as records of the accessing party in the party’s own official records system(s) in 
accordance with that party’s records management processes and any applicable 
contract or licensing agreement. 
 

10. Each agency has agreed to submit law enforcement, criminal justice and 
investigative types of records, reports, photographs, and information into the LInX 
warehouse. 
 
     11. There is no obligation and there should be no assumption that a particular 
party’s records housed in the LInX database warehouse represent a complete mirror 
image of that party’s records system for any subject or person. 
 
H. ACCESS TO AND USE OF INFORMATION. 
 

1. Each party will contribute information to the LInX and agrees to permit the 
access, dissemination, and/or use of such information by every other party under the 
provisions of this MOU (and any other applicable agreements that may be established 
for the LInX).  The contributing party has the sole responsibility and accountability for 
ensuring that it is not constrained from permitting this by any laws, regulations, policies, 
and procedures applicable to the submitting party. 
 

2. Agencies that do not provide data for inclusion in the LInX are not eligible to be 
parties without express, written approval of the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance 
Project’s LInX Governance Board. Only duly constituted law enforcement components 
of Federal, military, state, county, or local jurisdictions may become members of the 
LInX. 
 

3. All parties will have access via a secure internet connection to all the 
information in the LInX, as provided in this MOU and any other applicable agreements 
that may established for the LInX; and each agency is responsible for providing its own 
internet connectivity. 
 

4. An accessing party has the sole responsibility and accountability for ensuring 
that an access comports with any laws, regulations, policies, and procedures applicable 
to the accessing party. 
 

5. A party may only access the LInX when it has a legitimate, official need to 
know the information for an authorized law enforcement purpose, such as counter 

Page 255 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 6 11-2019 

terrorism, public safety, and/or national security, after receiving training appropriate to 
this MOU. 
 

6. An accessing party may use information for official matters only.  The system 
cannot be used for general licensing and employment purposes, background 
investigations of federal, state or local employees, or any other non-law enforcement 
purpose.  The LInX system may be queried by member agencies to assist them in 
developing leads to pursue in the vetting process of candidates for employment in their 
own agencies.  However, the information contained in LInX CANNOT be utilized as the 
basis for a hiring decision. Any leads developed as a result of the LInX queries must be 
verified with the contributing agencies and only the actual, verified data may be used in 
the hiring decision. 
       
      7. Information in the system, including any analytical products, may not be used 
for any unauthorized or non-official purpose and shall not be disseminated outside of an 
accessing party without first obtaining express permission of each party that contributed 
the information in question. 
 
       8. Notwithstanding the requirement in the previous provision that information may 
not be disseminated without first obtaining express permission of each party that 
contributed the information in question, in accordance with and to the extent permitted 
by applicable law, required court process, or guidelines issued jointly by the Attorney 
General of the United States and the Director of Central Intelligence, immediate 
dissemination of information can be made if a determination is made by the recipient of 
the information:  
 

(a) that the matter involves an actual or potential threat of terrorism, 
immediate danger of death or serious physical injury to any person, or imminent 
harm to the national security; and  

 
(b) requires dissemination without delay to any appropriate federal, state, 

local, or foreign government official for the purpose of preventing or responding 
to such a threat.   

 
The owner of the information shall be immediately notified of any and all disseminations 
made under this exception. 
 

9. Any requests for reports or data in LInX records from anyone other than a 
party to this MOU will be directed to the contributing party. 
     

10. Agencies who are not part of this MOU will not have direct access to LInX. 
Requests by such agencies for copies of information contained in LInX must be referred 
to the individual LInX party that owns the information. 
 

11. The information in the LInX shall not be used to establish or verify the 
eligibility of, or continuing compliance with statutory and regulatory requirements by 

Page 256 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 7 11-2019 

applicants for, recipients or beneficiaries of, participants in, or providers of services with 
respect to, cash or in-kind assistance or payments under the Federal or State benefit 
programs, or to recoup payments or delinquent debts under such Federal or State 
benefit programs. 
 

12. The LInX will include an audit capability that will log user activity. Each 
agency will designate a point of contact who shall have access to that member agency’s 
portion of the audit log.  However, the audit log aggregate is not a record of information 
wholly controlled by any one-member agency and no single member agency may 
disclose the content of the entire log. Any requests for copies of the entire audit log will 
be forwarded to each member agency for direct response to that member agency’s 
portion of the audit log.  
 
I. SECURITY. 
 

1. Each party will be responsible for designating those employees who have 
access to the LInX. This system has been developed with the capability to record each 
use of the system, including the identity of the individual accessing the system, and the 
time of the access to the system, and the information queried.  The system was 
developed with security in mind. It should be remembered by each participating member 
that access to the information within the system should be on a strictly official, need-to-
know basis, and that all information is law enforcement sensitive. 
 

2. Each party agrees to use the same degree of care in protecting information 
accessed under this MOU as it exercises with respect to its own sensitive information.  
Each party agrees to restrict access to such information to only those of its (and it’s 
governmental superior’s) officers, employees, detailees, agents, representatives, task 
force members, contractors/subcontractors, consultants, or advisors with an official 
“need to know” such information.  Each party agrees to take appropriate corrective 
administrative and/or disciplinary action against any of its personnel who misuse the 
LInX system as if it were an abuse of their own sensitive information systems of 
records. 
 

3. Each party is responsible for training those employees authorized to access 
the LInX system regarding the use and dissemination of information obtained from the 
system.  Specifically, employees should be given a clear understanding of the need to 
verify the reliability of the information with the contributing party before using the 
information for purposes such as preparing affidavits, or obtaining subpoenas and 
warrants, etc. Parties should also fully brief accessing employees about the 
proscriptions for using third party information as described in Section H, paragraphs 4–
11, above. 
 
J. PROPERTY. 
 

1. The equipment purchased by the NCIS to support this effort will remain the 
property of the NCIS. After expiration of any warranties, the NCIS and the Southeast 

Page 257 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 8 11-2019 

Law Enforcement Alliance Project Governance Board will determine the responsibility 
for the maintenance of the server.  
       

2. Ownership of all property purchased by parties other than the NCIS will remain 
the property of the purchasing party.  Each party accessing the LInX from the party’s 
facility shall provide its own computer stations for its designated employees to have use 
and access to the LInX. The accessing party is responsible for configuring its computers 
to conform to the access requirements.  Maintenance of the equipment purchased by 
the accessing party shall be the responsibility of that party. 
 
K. COSTS. 
 

1. Unless otherwise provided herein or in a supplementary writing, each party 
shall bear its own costs in relation to this MOU.  Even where a party has agreed (or later 
does agree) to assume a particular financial responsibility, the party’s express written 
approval must be obtained before the incurring by another party of each expense 
associated with the responsibility.  All obligations of and expenditures by the parties will 
be subject to their respective budgetary and fiscal processes and subject to availability 
of funds pursuant to all laws, regulations, and policies applicable thereto.  The parties 
acknowledge that there is no intimation, promise, or guarantee that funds will be 
available in future years. 
 
L. LIABILITY. 
 

1. The LInX is not a separate legal entity capable of maintaining an employer-
employee relationship and, as such, all personnel assigned by a party to perform LInX 
related functions shall not be considered employees of the LInX or of any other party for 
any purpose.  The assigning party thus remains solely responsible for supervision, work 
schedules, performance appraisals, compensation, overtime, vacations, retirement, 
expenses, disability, and all other employment-related benefits incident to assignment of 
its personnel to LInX functions. 
 

2. Unless specifically addressed by the terms of this MOU (or other written 
agreement), the parties acknowledge responsibility for the negligent or wrongful acts or 
omissions of their respective officers and employees, but only to the extent they would 
be liable under the laws of the jurisdiction(s) to which they are subject. 

 
M. GOVERNANCE. 
 

1. The parties recognize that the success of this project requires close 
cooperation on the part of all parties.  To this end, the LInX system will be operated 
under a shared management concept in which the parties will be involved in formulating 
operating policies and procedures.  The Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance Project 
Governance Board will consist of the head (or authorized designee) of each 
participating law enforcement agency. The parties agree to comply with all future 
policies and procedures developed by this Governance Board.  

Page 258 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 9 11-2019 

 
2.  Each member of the Governance Board shall have an equal vote and voice 

on all board decisions.  Unless otherwise provided, Roberts Revised Rules of Order 
shall govern all procedural matters relating to the business of the Governance Board.         
 

3. A chairperson shall be elected by its members, together with such other 
officers as a majority of the Board may determine.  The chairperson, or any board 
member, may call sessions as necessary.  For a meeting to occur a minimum of 51% of 
the membership must be present and a simple majority of those present shall be 
required for passage of any policy matters.   A tie vote does not pass the matter.  In 
emergency situations, the presiding officer may conduct a telephone or email poll of 
Board members to resolve any issues. The Governance Board may also establish any 
needed committees such as technical, user, oversight, and legal. 
 

4. Disagreements wholly among and between LInX members arising under or 
relating to this MOU shall be resolved only via consultation at the lowest practicable 
level by and between the affected parties and their sponsoring agencies (or as 
otherwise may be provided under any separate governance procedures) and will not be 
referred to any court, or to any other person or entity for settlement.  All unresolved 
matters will go before the Governance Board. 
 

5. The Governance Board may establish additional procedures and rules for the 
governance of the LInX system and in furtherance thereof may enter into one or more 
separate formal or informal agreements, provided that any such agreement does not 
conflict with the spirit, intent, or provisions of this MOU, and is sufficiently memorialized 
to meet the business purposes of the Governance Board (including adequately 
informing current and future parties). Such governance agreement(s) may, for instance 
address: organizational structure and control; executive management and 
administration; delegation of authority; operating policies, procedures, rules, and 
practices; meetings, quorums, and voting procedures; audits; and sanctions (including 
involuntary termination of a party’s participation in this MOU). 
 
N. DISCLOSURE OF THIRD PARTY INFORMATION. 
 

1. When addressing any request for the disclosure of third agency information 
where that information was obtained as a result of a query(s) made through the LInX 
system, the participating agencies shall comply with the following policy:    
 

(a) In all cases, for providers of any third agency information held in 
another LInX MOU signatory’s files, the provider retains proprietary ownership of 
the information other than as provided by specific law.  

 
(b) As agreed by all parties and established in Sections G, H and I of the 

LInX MOU and herein, information acquired through the LInX System by all 
parties, shall be considered sensitive law enforcement information, the non-
disclosure of which is essential to law enforcement or the protection of on-going 

Page 259 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 10 11-2019 

investigations and persons rights to privacy.  Therefore, in all cases the agency 
with proprietary interest will be immediately notified of a request for sharing or 
disclosure of that information from any agencies or parties outside of participating 
agencies in the LInX system. 

 
(c) All parties agree to assist and cooperate with any signatories in 

protecting information from harmful disclosure to the fullest extent of the law. 
 

(d) It is not the intention of this agreement to circumvent or obstruct 
existing open government and/or public information disclosure laws.  Rather it is 
intended to ensure the protection of sensitive law enforcement information, 
information that has been designated as part of an active and ongoing 
investigative effort by any party, and other information as protected by applicable 
Federal and State privacy laws. 

 
O. NO RIGHTS IN NON-PARTIES. 
 

1. This MOU is an agreement among the parties and is not intended, and should 
not be construed, to create or confer on any other person or entity any right or benefit, 
substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or otherwise against the NCIS, the 
Department of the Navy, the Department of Defense, the FBI, the Department of 
Justice, the United States, a party, or any State, county, locality, or other sponsor under 
whose auspices a party is participating in the LInX or the officers, directors, employees, 
detailees, agents, representatives, contractors, subcontractors, consultants, advisors, 
successors, assigns or other agencies thereof. 
 
P. EFFECTIVE DATE/DURATION/MODIFICATION/TERMINATION. 
 
     1. As among the original parties, this MOU shall become effective when the duly 
authorized representatives of each party have all signed it.  For parties who 
subsequently join, this MOU shall become effective when completed and signed by the 
joining party’s duly authorized representative and countersigned by the representatives 
of all the other parties applicable at the time of the joining. 
 
       2. This MOU shall continue in force indefinitely for so long as it continues to 
advance the participants’ mission purposes, contingent upon approval and availability of 
necessary funding. 
 
       3. This MOU may be modified upon the mutual written consent of the duly 
authorized representatives of all parties.  However, the parties may, without the need of 
formal MOU modification, cooperatively address and resolve administrative, technical, 
and operational details relating to this MOU, provided that any such resolution: does not 
conflict with the spirit, intent, or provisions of this MOU; could not reasonably be viewed 
as particularly sensitive, controversial, or objectionable by one or more parties; and is 
sufficiently memorialized to meet the business purposes of LInX governance (including 
adequately informing current and future parties). 

Page 260 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 11 11-2019 

 
       4. This MOU may be terminated at any time by the mutual written agreement of 
the duly authorized representatives of all parties. A party’s duly authorized 
representative may also terminate the party’s participation in the MOU upon written 
notice to all other parties of not less than thirty 30 days. A party’s participation may also 
be terminated involuntarily as may be provided in applicable governance agreement. 
 
     5. Upon termination of this MOU, all property being used under its purview will 
be returned to the respective supplying party. Similarly, if an individual party’s 
participation in this MOU is terminated, the party will return any property to supplying 
parties, and the remaining parties will return any property supplied by the withdrawing 
party. 
 
      6. All information contributed to the LInX by a terminating party will be deleted 
from LInX. 
 

7. As to information in the LInX during a party’s participation under this MOU, the 
rights, obligations, responsibilities, limitations, and other understandings with respect to 
the disclosure and use of such information shall survive any termination.  This applies 
both as to a terminating party’s information, and to the other parties’ disclosure and use 
of a terminating party’s information. 
 
Q. APPENDICES. 
 
A.  Form for new agencies to join MOU (and copies of executed forms for each new 
agency which has so joined) 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this MOU by the signatures of the 
duly authorized representative of each participating agency on an individual page 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as part of this MOU. 
 

Page 261 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 12 11-2019 

SOUTHEAST LAW ENFORCEMENT ALLIANCE PROJECT LINX MEMORANDUM 
OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
Signatory Page 
 
For The  ____________________________________________________________ 
 
Signature: __________________________________ Date: ___________________  
 
Name: ______________________________________________________________  
 
Title:   ______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 262 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 13 11-2019 

APPENDIX A – SOUTHEAST LAW ENFORCEMENT ALLIANCE PROJECT’S LInX 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
PURPOSE.  This document effects the joining by the CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT 

SCHOOLS POLICE DEPARTMENT AND THE CLAY COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD 
in the MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AMONG THE NAVAL CRIMINAL 
INVESTIGATIVE SERVICE AND PARTICIPATING FEDERAL, STATE, AND 
LOCAL AGENCIES FOR AN INFORMATION SHARING INITIATIVE KNOWN AS 
THE SOUTHEAST LAW ENFORCEMENT ALLIANCE PROJECT’S LAW 
ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION EXCHANGE (LInX).  

 
AUTHORITY. Authority for the Joining Party to enter into this MOU includes:  

__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________
_. 

 
AGREEMENT. The Joining Party agrees to abide by all provisions and assume all 

obligations and responsibilities of the MOU, including any formal changes and any 
administrative, technical, and operational resolutions in effect at the time of 
execution (as to which the Joining Party acknowledges being provided copies or 
other adequate notice).  In return, the Joining Party shall also be considered a party 
and shall have the same rights and privileges as the original parties. 

 
POINT OF CONTACT. The Joining Party’s POC is: 
 
Name and Title: ______________________________________________________ 
Office Phone: _______________Cell: _______________ Fax: ________________ 
Address: _____________________________________________________________ 
Email/Other: _________________________________________________________ 
 
COSTS.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Joining Party shall bear its own costs 
in relation to the MOU. 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE/DURATION/TERMINATION.  This document shall take effect when 
completed and signed by the Joining Party’s duly authorized representative and 
countersigned by the representatives of the Southeast Law Enforcement Alliance 
Project’s Governance Board authorized to do so under the LInX governance procedures 
applicable at the time of joining.  Thereafter, duration and termination of the Joining 
Party’s participation in the MOU shall be as provided in the MOU. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 263 of 354

DRAFT



 

Southeast LInX MOU 14 11-2019 

FOR THE JOINING PARTY: 
Signature: ________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name ________________________________________________________________ 
Title and Agency: _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: ________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name ________________________________________________________________ 
Title and Agency: _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
Signature: ________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name ________________________________________________________________ 
Title and Agency: _____________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FOR THE SOUTHEAST LAW ENFORCEMENT ALLIANCE PROJECT’S LAW 

ENFORCEMENT INFORMATION EXCHANGE (LInX):  
 
Signature: ________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
Title and Agency: ____________________________________________________ 
 
Signature: ________________________________ Date: _____________________ 
Name: _____________________________________________________________ 
Title and Agency: _____________________________________________________ 
 

10-07-21

David Broskie
10-07-21

Superintendant - Clay County District Schools

Kenneth Wagner
Chief of Police - Clay County District Schools Police Department 

10-07-21

Board Chair - Clay County School Board
Mary Bolla

Page 264 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Interlocal Agreement to Sell Low-Priced Fuel to the Clay County Board of County Commissioners for Use of Fire and
Rescue Vehicles in the Keystone Heights Area

Description
This agreement between the Clay County Board of County Commissioners and the School Board of Clay County is to be able to
provide a source of low-priced gasoline for Fire and Rescue vehicles located at Fire Station Number 23 in the area of Keystone
Heights, Florida.

Gap Analysis
The Board of County Commissioners is in need of a source of low-priced diesel fuel for fire and rescue vehicles located at Fire
Station Number 23 in the area of Keystone Heights, Florida, other than the utilization of privately-owned fuel stations or county
fueling stations in Keystone Heights.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board agreed to sell gasoline to the Board of County Commissioners from the Keystone Facility.  The
price per gallon cost plus a 3.45 percent administrative fee charged by and payable to the School Board.

Expected Outcomes
The Board of County Commissioners could realize significant savings to the tax payers by purchasing diesel from the Clay
County School Board at the facility.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the Interlocal Agreement.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
No cost to the District.

Review Comments

Attachments

Interlocal Agreement with Clay County for Keystone Hts. Fuel.pdf

Page 265 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/interlocal-agreement-with-clay-county-for-keystone-hts-fuel_1.pdf


Clay County Agreement/Contract No. 2021/2022 -____ 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

AND THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 THIS INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into on this 

______ day of October, 2021 by and between Clay County, a political subdivision of the State of 

Florida (“County”), and the School Board of Clay County, a body corporate and political 

subdivision of the State of Florida (“School Board”). 

RECITALS 

  

 WHEREAS, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, permits local governmental units to make the 

most efficient use of their powers by enabling them to cooperate with other localities on a basis of 

mutual advantage; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County is in need of a source of low-priced diesel fuel for fire and rescue 

vehicles in the area of Keystone Heights, Florida; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School Board maintains diesel fuel pumping facilities near McRae 

Elementary School, 6770 County Road 31SC, in Keystone Heights, Florida (“Facility”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the County could realize significant savings to the taxpayers by purchasing 

diesel from the School Board at the Facility; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the School Board is willing to sell diesel fuel to the County from the Facility. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing Recitals and the mutual 

covenants set forth herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 

acknowledged and objections to the sufficiency and adequacy of which are hereby waived, the parties 

do hereby agree as follows: 

 

 1. Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act. This Agreement is entered into pursuant to the 

provisions of Section 163.01, Florida Statutes, commonly known as the "Florida Interlocal 

Cooperation Act of 1969", and all applicable portions of the Act are made a part hereof and 

incorporated herein as if set forth in full, including, but not limited to the following specific 

provisions: 

 

 a. All of the privileges and immunities and limitations from liability, exemptions from 

 laws, ordinances and rules, and all pensions and relief, disability, workers' compensation 

 and other benefits which apply to the activity of officers, agents, or employees of the parties 

 hereto when performing their respective functions within their respective territorial limits 

 for their respective agencies, shall apply to the same degree and extent to the performance 

 of such functions and duties of such officers, agents or employees extra-territorially under 

 the provisions of this Agreement. 

 

Page 266 of 354

DRAFT



2 

 

 b. This Agreement does not and shall not be deemed to relieve any of the parties hereto 

 of any of their respective obligations or responsibilities imposed upon them by law except 

 to the extent of the actual and timely performance of those obligations or responsibilities 

 by one or more of the parties to this Agreement, in which case performance provided 

 hereunder may be offered in satisfaction of the obligation or responsibility. 

 

 c. As a condition precedent to its effectiveness, and pursuant to Section 163.01(11), 

 Florida Statutes, this Agreement and any subsequent amendments hereto shall be filed with 

 the Clerk of the Circuit Court of the County. 

 

 2. The School Board agrees to sell diesel fuel to the County from the Facility for Clay 

County Fire and Rescue vehicles. 

 

 3. The price per gallon charged to the County will be the School Board’s per gallon 

cost plus a 3.45 percent administrative fee charged by and payable to the School Board. 

 

 4. Clay County Fire and Rescue personnel assigned to Fire Station No. 23 (“CCFR 

Personnel”) will have 24-hour access to the Facility and will be provided keys or other materials 

or information as may be needed to access the Facility and operate the pumps therein situated. 

 

 5. CCFR Personnel will be responsible for securing/locking access points to the 

Facility and pumps upon their departure from the Facility. Any loss suffered by the School Board 

resulting from the failure of CCFR Personnel to secure the Facility and pumps will be the 

responsibility of the County. 

 

 6. CCFR Personnel who fuel County Fire and Rescue vehicles at the Facility shall 

record each fuel transaction and the exact amount of fuel dispensed during each transaction. On 

the first business day of each month during the term of this Agreement, CCFR Personnel or other 

Clay County personnel as may be designated by the County will submit such transaction record(s) 

or other documentation (“Usage Report”) to the School Board Director of Transportation, which 

shall reflect each fuel transaction and the total amount of fuel dispensed by CCFR Personnel during 

the preceding month. 

 

 7. The School Board shall reconcile the Usage Report against its own records and 

transmit to the County a monthly invoice. The County shall remit payment within forty-five (45) 

days of its receipt of the monthly invoice in accordance with the Local Government Prompt 

Payment Act. 

 

 8. Subject to and within the limitations of Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, the County 

agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the School Board from and against any loss, damage, or 

liability which arises from the negligent or intentional acts of CCFR Personnel in connection with 

performance of this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive the sovereign 

immunity protections provided the County pursuant to Florida law. Notwithstanding anything 

stated to the contrary in the Agreement, the County’s obligation to compensate or indemnify is 

limited and shall not exceed the limits set forth in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, as it may be 

amended from time to time.  

Page 267 of 354

DRAFT



3 

 

 

 9. The term of this Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2021, and shall 

remain in effect for a period of one (1) year. The Agreement may be extended or modified only by 

written agreement of the parties. Either party may terminate the Agreement with or without cause 

by providing sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other party. Such written notice shall be given 

by certified mail directed to the following addresses: 

 

David Broskie, Superintendent of Schools 

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 

900 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

Howard Wanamaker, County Manager  

CLAY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

477 Houston Street  

P.O. Box 1366 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 

 

 10. The School Board acknowledges that in the County budget for each fiscal year 

during which the term of this Agreement is in effect, a limited amount of funds are appropriated 

and made available for payment under this Agreement. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 

129.07, Florida Statutes, the maximum payment that the County is obligated to make under the 

Agreement from the budget of any fiscal year shall not exceed the appropriation for said fiscal 

year. 

 

 11. The access to, disclosure, non-disclosure, or exemption of records, data, 

documents, and/or materials, associated with this Agreement shall be subject to the applicable 

provisions of the Florida Public Records Law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes), and other applicable 

State or Federal law. The parties shall comply with all requirements of Chapter 119, Florida 

Statutes, to the extent applicable to the records and documents associated with this Agreement that 

are in its possession or under its control. A request to inspect or copy public records relating to the 

Agreement must be made directly to the County. The parties shall retain all records relating to this 

Agreement for a period of at least five (5) years after the Agreement terminates.   

 

IF THE SCHOOL BOARD HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE 

SCHOOL BOARD’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING 

TO THE AGREEMENT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 

RECORDS AT (904) 278-4754, publicrecords@claycountygov.com, POST 

OFFICE BOX 1366, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA  32043.  
 

 12. No third party beneficiaries are intended or contemplated under this Agreement, 

and no third party shall be deemed to have rights or remedies arising under this Agreement against 

either of the parties to this Agreement. 

 

Page 268 of 354

DRAFT



4 

 

 13. The Agreement may only be modified or amended upon mutual written agreement 

of the parties.  No oral agreements or representation shall be valid or binding upon either party.   

 

14. Each of the parties shall cooperate with one another, shall do and perform such 

actions and things, and shall execute and deliver such agreements, documents and instruments, as 

may be reasonable and necessary to effectuate the purposes and intents of this Agreement. 

 

15. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Florida. Venue for any litigation, mediation, or other action proceeding between the 

parties arising out of this Agreement lies in Clay County, Florida. 

 

 16. In the event either party shall retain an attorney to litigate on its behalf against the 

other party regarding the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement or regarding the rights, 

remedies, or obligations of the parties arising under this Agreement, the party prevailing on the 

majority of its claims, or which successfully defends against a majority of the other party’s claims, 

shall be entitled to an award of reasonable attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses against the other 

party, including fees, costs, and expenses incurred from the date of referral of the dispute to the 

prevailing party’s attorney through the conclusion of litigation, or incurred in bankruptcy or on 

appeal.  Nothing contained herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity and 

extend the County’s liability beyond the limits established in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

 17. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 

an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument. 

 

 18. It is mutually acknowledged and agreed by the parties hereto that this Agreement 

contains the entire agreement between the County and the School Board with respect to the subject 

matter of this Agreement, and that there are no verbal agreements, representations, warranties or 

other understandings affecting the same. 

 

 19. The parties to this Agreement agree to utilize electronic signatures and that the 

digital signatures of the parties set forth below are intended to authenticate this Agreement and 

have the same force and effect as manual written signatures. Each person signing on behalf of the 

parties to the Agreement represents and warrants that he/she has full authority to execute this 

Agreement on behalf of such party and that the Agreement will constitute a legal and binding 

obligation of such party. 

 

[Signatures appear on the following page.] 

 

  

  

Page 269 of 354

DRAFT



5 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date 

and year first above written. 

 

CLAY COUNTY, a political subdivision of the 

 State of Florida   

 

 

     By:        

   Howard Wanamaker 

  County Manager on behalf of the   

  Board of County Commissioners 

 

 

      THE SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY,  

      FLORIDA 

 

 

 By:        

   Mary Bolla 

  Chairperson      

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

David Broskie 

Superintendent of Schools  

 

 
F:\Contract\Interlocal\ccsb\Diesel Fuel\Interlocal Agreement CCSB 2021-2022 Diesel Fuel.docx 

Page 270 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district.  The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF).  The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month.  As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status.  Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 10.7.21.pdf

Page 271 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-10721.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 

 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval having met all 
requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee consisting of Michael Kemp, 
Phil Hans, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-qualification certification is valid for one year from the 
end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Auld & White Constructors, LLC General Contractor $50,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Ajax Building Company, LLC General Contractor $750,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

CGC, Inc. General and Underground 
Utility & Excavation Contractor 

$25,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Gilbane Building Company General Contractor $500,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Johnson Controls, Inc.  Mechanical Contractor $200,000,000.00 October 31, 2021 

Northeast Atlantic Electrical, LLC Electrical $300,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Register Roofing & Sheet Metal, Inc. General and Roofing 
Contractor 

$10,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Stellar Group, Inc. General and Mechanical 
Contractor 

$75,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

T&M Electric Electrical Contractor $7,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Thomas May Construction Company General, Roofing, and 
Underground Utility & 
Excavation Contractor 

$25,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Tim Young Construction, Inc. General Contractor $4,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Verdex Construction, LLC General Contractor $150,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Zabatt Engine Services Electrical and Building 
Contractor 

$5,000,000.00 October 31, 2022 

Page 272 of 354

DRAFT



 

Page 273 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Preliminary (Phase II) Plans and Specifications for Elementary School “R”

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Preliminary (Phase II) stage. The tentative Phase I estimate from the Construction Management firm
of $33,445,111.00 dated September 16, 2021, is a considerable increase from the Architect’s original Phase I estimate of
$22,547,665.00 on July 6, 2021. The dramatic increase in cost appears to be related to the dynamic and strained material and
labor shortages caused by Covid-19. The architect and contractor, as well as the design procurement method are almost identical
to Discovery Oaks Elementary. The Covid-19 influenced environment is the most notable change between Elementary School
“R” and Discovery Oaks Elementary. The Construction Manager, Architect, and Facility Planning and Construction Department
have begun to utilize value engineering to reduce cost. Caution will be used to ensure short term savings do not create negative
long term impacts.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user's
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Preliminary Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program changes are incorporated
into the design. Board approval will allow code review to move forward. Code approval will allow procurement of long lead time
(the structural steel building lead time of 6-9 weeks for Discovery Oaks Elementary is now 9 months for Elementary School
“R”).

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Preliminary (Phase II) Plans and Specifications for Elementary School “R”.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Plan for $26,000,000.00. The Construction Manager’s initial Phase I cost estimate is
$33,445,111.00. Phase II cost estimates are expected to be similar.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 274 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) for Tynes Elementary School New Classroom Addition

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This Change Order returns unspent Owner Direct Purchase Order monies to the
Contractor and finalizes the value of tax saving for the project.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #4.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
David Kramer, Project Manager, (904) 336-6849, david.kramer@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $6,293.75. Architect fees will not increase as a result of this change
order. The owner Direct Purchase Order saved the District $25,494.31 on the project. These funds are available and budgeted in
the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #4 (Direct Purchasing) TES New Classroom Addition.pdf

Page 275 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-4-direct-purchasing-tes-new-classroom-addition.pdf


Page 276 of 354

DRAFT



Page 277 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Project Priority List (P.P.L.) to Identify Eligible Projects for Capital Outlay & Debt Service (C.O. & D.S.) Expenditures

Description
C.O. & D.S. funds are proceeds from tax on motor vehicle licenses.  Projects utilizing these funds must be recommended in the
Education Plant Survey and listed on the Project Priority List (P.P.L.).  Without their listing on the P.P.L, they are not eligible for
expenditure.  Per SREF Section 2.1(5)(d), the P.P.L. reflects 2021/22 projects that will be utilizing C.O. & D.S.  For 2020/21,
C.O. & D.S. funding will be utilized for costs associated with Elementary R.

Gap Analysis
Pursuant to Article XII, Section 9(d), of the Florida Constitution, the first proceeds from the tax on motor vehicle licenses are
available to school districts for capital outlay purposes.  Projects used for these purposes must be recommended in the
Educational Plant Survey and listed on the Project Priority List (P.P.L).  Failure to list the project(s) on the P.P.L. will exclude
eligibility for the use of C.O. & D.S. funding.

Previous Outcomes
C.O. & D.S. funds were expended as appropriate on the 2021/22 Educational Facilities Plan and approved by the SBCC at the
special called meeting on September 9, 2021.

Expected Outcomes
Expend C.O. & D.S. funds on the project(s) shown on the attached list.  It is expected the 2020/21 C.O. & D.S. funds will be
utilized for costs associated with Elementary R.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment CCDS Students.

Recommendation
Approve the Project Priority List (P.P.L.) as recommended and comply with both Article XII, Section 9(d) of the Florida
Constitution and SREF Section 2.1(5)(d).

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director, Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Approval of the P.P.L. allows for eligibility only and has no additional financial impact. Project funding was approved on
September 9, 2021 as a requirement in the Educational Facilities Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

Project Priority List.pdf

Page 278 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/project-priority-list_3.pdf


Page 279 of 354

DRAFT



Page 280 of 354

DRAFT



Page 281 of 354

DRAFT



Page 282 of 354

DRAFT



Page 283 of 354

DRAFT



Page 284 of 354

DRAFT



Page 285 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - SchoolDude Facility Condition Assessment Contract

Description
The Operations Department is requesting approval of a Facility Condition Assessment.  The Facility Condition Assessment is a
one-time service to do a full thorough assessment of entire campuses and infrastructure components.  This includes a detailed
catalog of CCDS asset inventory, building components, and their conditions/life expectancies.  The full scope of work can be
found in the attached proposal.

Gap Analysis
Currently CCDS uses a work order system and excel spreadsheets to keep track of, mainly, just the age of our larger operating
systems (HVAC units, Electrical Panels, WW Treatment, boilers, etc.).  Several of CCDS' most senior maintenance personnel are
nearing or have already retired, along with the institutional knowledge of our school’s systems, facilities, and campuses.  CCDS
should strategically index and create a more central library for current facility conditions in order for staff to be more productive,
transparent, and improve “facilities intelligence”.  This countywide facility condition assessment will allow for a more detailed
assessment of our facilities from which to start proactively, rather than, reactively maintaining our assets.

Previous Outcomes
Studies have shown that strategic asset management reduces asset degradation by up to 50% a year.

Expected Outcomes
With the passing of the half-cent sales tax it is imperative CCDS staff be completely transparent about project priorities. Asset
management used in tandem with a countywide condition assessment will enable Clay County District Schools to make better
decisions based on a more comprehensive catalogue of data and evidence.  This will allow the district to strive for a common
goal for how much funding is needed and what assets (systems) are more likely to fail. 

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve the contract with SchoolDude.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,

Financial Impact
If approved, the cost for this contract will be $496,740.00.  These funds are available and budgeted in the EdFIRST plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

School Dude Solutions Contract.pdf

School Dude Contract Review Approval.pdf

Page 286 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-dude-solutions-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/school-dude-contract-review-approval.pdf


Page 287 of 354

DRAFT



Page 288 of 354

DRAFT



Page 289 of 354

DRAFT



Page 290 of 354

DRAFT



Page 291 of 354

DRAFT



Page 292 of 354

DRAFT



Page 293 of 354

DRAFT



Page 294 of 354

DRAFT



Page 295 of 354

DRAFT



Page 296 of 354

DRAFT



Page 297 of 354

DRAFT



Page 298 of 354

DRAFT



Page 299 of 354

DRAFT



Page 300 of 354

DRAFT



Page 301 of 354

DRAFT



Page 302 of 354

DRAFT



Page 303 of 354

DRAFT



Page 304 of 354

DRAFT



Page 305 of 354

DRAFT



Page 306 of 354

DRAFT



Page 307 of 354

DRAFT



Page 308 of 354

DRAFT



Page 309 of 354

DRAFT



Page 310 of 354

DRAFT



Page 311 of 354

DRAFT



Page 312 of 354

DRAFT



Page 313 of 354

DRAFT



Page 314 of 354

DRAFT



Page 315 of 354

DRAFT



Page 316 of 354

DRAFT



Page 317 of 354

DRAFT



Page 318 of 354

DRAFT



Page 319 of 354

DRAFT



Page 320 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   brenda.troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action A 10 7 2021.pdf (Confidential)

Page 321 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Board Policy, to wit:  General Order 9.17, which General Order sets forth
requirements relating to school safety, reporting and training, as amended per the requirements of statutory changes.

Description
The School Board, previously approved Standard Operating Procedure 9.26. That Procedure has been re-designated a General
Order 9.17 and Amended to meet the requirements of the 2021 legislation. Additional amendments have been added which make
the General Order more workable from the District standpoint. The General Order, as amended sets forth requirements relating to
school safety, reporting and training.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board, previously approved Standard Operating Procedure 9.26. That Procedure has been re-designated a General
Order and Amended

Expected Outcomes
Public Hearing will be submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for approval in the manner contemplated by the
Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the Board Policy as advertised, to wit: General Order 9.17.

Contact
Kenneth Wagner, Chief, CCDSPD, (904)336-0101, kenneth.wagner@myoneclayspd.net; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board
Attorney, (904)336-6507, james.bickner@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

9.17 CCDS Policy Safety Measures.pdf

Legal Adv. PH_SB Policy 9.17-9.18.pdf

Page 322 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/917-ccds-policy-safety-measures.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-ph_sb-policy-917-918.pdf


1 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

 

SECTION IX 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 

9.17 SCHOOL SAFETY REQUIREMENTS AND MONITORING 
 
The following procedures shall be used for school safety requirements and monitoring 

and applies to the School Safety Specialists, all Clay County District Schools’ 

Employees, District Police Department and Clay County Charter Schools and their 

employees. 

  

1.  Definitions   

 

A.  “CSTAG” means the Comprehensive School Threat Assessment Guidelines/ 
Threat Assessment and Response Protocol form CSTAG 2021 (Incorporated in 
Rule 6A-1.0018, F.A.C.), which must be used for school threat assessments in all 
public schools, including charter schools. 

B.  “Department” means the Florida Department of Education. 

C.  “Discharge” means to fire a gun or firearm. 

D.  “Discipline” means a safe-school officer receiving a behavior-related official 

reprimand. 

E.  “Dismissal” means a safe-school officer is permanently relieved of his position.  

Dismissal or termination is involuntary and initiated by the employer, including 

firings or other discharges for cause. 

F.  “Florida Safe Schools Assessment Tool” or “FSSAT” means the site security risk 

assessment tool used by school officials at each school district and public school 

site in the state, including charter schools, to conduct security assessments, as 

provided in Section 1006.1493, F.S. 

G.  “FortifyFL” means the mobile suspicious activity reporting tool that allows 

students and members of the community to report information anonymously 

concerning unsafe, potentially harmful, dangerous, violent, or criminal activities, 

or threats of such activities to law enforcement or school officials as described in 

Section 943.082, F.S. 

H   “Law enforcement officer” means the persons identified in Section 943.10(1), 

F.S.   

I.  “Office” means the Department’s Office of Safe Schools. 

J. “Safe-school officer” means a school resource officer, a school-safety officer, a 

school guardian, or a school security guard, as identified in Section 1006.12(1)-

(4), F.S.  

K. “School administrator” means the school personnel identified in Section 

1012.01(3), F.S. 

L. “School-based mental health services provider” means a school psychologist 

certified under Rule 6A-4.0311, F.A.C., a school social worker certified under 

Page 323 of 354

DRAFT



2 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

Rule 6A-4.035, F.A.C., a school counselor certified under Rule 6A-4.0181, 

F.A.C., or a mental health professional licensed under Chapter 490 or 491, 

Florida Statutes, who is employed or contracted by a district to provide mental 

health services in schools.  

M. “School day” means any day, including a partial day, where students are 

physically present at school for instructional purposes, as defined by Section 

1011.60(2), F.S.,  and Rule 6A-1.045111, F.A.C.  

M. “School district” or “district” means a Florida school district or district school 

board, the Florida Virtual School (Section 1002.37, F.S.), the Florida School for 

the Deaf and the Blind (Section 1002.36, F.S.), and Developmental Research 

(Laboratory) Schools (Section 1002.32, F.S.). 

O. “School safety specialist” means the district school superintendent’s designee per 

Section 1006.07(6)(a), F.S., responsible for the oversight of all aspects of school 

safety and security within the school district and who is a school administrator or 

a law enforcement officer. 

P. “SESIR” means School Environmental Safety Incident Reporting, as identified in 

Rule 6A-1.0017, F.A.C. 

Q.  “Substantive threat” means a threat where the intent to harm is either present or 

unclear, and requires protective action, as further defined in the CSTAG, Form 

CSTAG-2021. 

R. “Suspected deficiency” means that there is at least some evidence that a district 

or school is not acting in compliance with the safety requirements set forth in this 

rule.  

S.  “Transient threat” means a threat where there is not a sustained intent to harm 

and the situation can be quickly resolved with apology, retraction, or explanation 

by the person who made the threat, as defined in the CSTAG, Form CSTAG-

2021. 

 

2.  Procedure 

  

A.  District Contact Information - By August 1 of each year, the Superintendent must 

submit the name, phone number, and email address for each Schools Safety 

Specialist to the Office at SafeSchools@fldoe.org.  When any changes occur to 

the information required in this paragraph, the Superintendent must update the 

information within one (1) school day.  

B. Monitoring by the Clay County District Schools Safety Specialist School: CCDS 

Schools Safety Specialist is responsible for the supervision and oversight for all 

school safety and security personnel, policies, and procedures in the school 

district, including at charter schools.  It shall be the responsibility of the school 

safety specialist to review school district and charter school policies and 

procedures at least annually for compliance with state law and rules, as provided 

by Section 1006.07(6)(a)1., F.S.  It shall be the responsibility of the Schools 

Page 324 of 354

DRAFT



3 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

Safety Specialist to identify and correct instances of noncompliance of the rules 

established herein at any Clay County District School or Clay County Charter 

Schools relating to safety. Such policies must require the following: 

1.  If the school safety specialist determines a deficiency relating to a safe-school 

officer coverage at a defined school (facility), he or she must resolve the 

deficiency by the next school day; 

2.  The school safety specialist shall notify the Office of Safe Schools within 

twenty-four (24) hours at SafeSchools@fldoe.org of any deficiencies relating 

to safe-school officer coverage and any instance of noncompliance that is 

determined to be an imminent threat to the health, safety, or welfare of 

students or staff. Notifications made under this subparagraph must contain 

particularized facts beyond noncompliance with rule or statute that explain the 

imminent threat; and 

3.  The school safety specialist shall notify the Office of Safe School within three 

(3) days at SafeSchools@fldoe.org of any instance of noncompliance not 

corrected within sixty (60) days.   

C.  Monitoring by the Department of Education, Office of Safe Schools: 

  

Process 

 

The Office of Safe Schools will monitor compliance with school safety 

requirements identified in rule 6A-1.0018  through announced and unannounced 

on-site visits to schools and district facilities or offices, review of school and 

district websites and publications, interviews with students and staff, and review 

of media reports and other information submitted to or received by the Office. It is 

the policy of the Clay County District Schools and its staff to keep records 

demonstrating the requirements are met in accordance with rule 6A-1.0018  and 

must provide those records to the Office upon request. These records shall be 

housed in a secure location within the Clay County District Schools Police 

Department records section. The Office will provide notice of a suspected 

deficiency to the Clay County School Safety Specialist at the email address 

provided in accordance with rule 6A-1.0018. Failure to maintain accurate contact 

information with the Office will not extend the time for correction. Schools Safety 

Specialist Districts shall notify suspected deficiency to the Clay County District 

Schools Superintendent. Time allotted by the Office of Safe Schools for Clay 

County District Schools to respond and cure deficiencies. 

1.  When the notice of suspected deficiency concerns a failure to have a safe-

school officer established or assigned at each school facility, as required by 

Section 1006.12, F.S., the school safety specialist, after approval of the 

Police Chief and/or Assistant Superintendent of Operations, must respond in 

writing and verify the school(s) identified in the notice have a safe-school 

officer on site by the next school day. 

Page 325 of 354

DRAFT



4 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

2.  In all other cases, the school safety specialist must respond in writing within 

five (5) school days and verify that the district or school has corrected the 

suspected deficiency, or within that same time period, submit a written plan 

describing how the district will bring the identified school(s) into compliance. A 

plan submitted under this paragraph must include an estimated date of 

completion and an explanation of alternate security measures designed to 

maintain a safe learning environment. Upon verification of compliance or 

correction of a deficiency, the Office will provide a written notice of resolution 

by email to the school safety specialist. When a suspected deficiency has not 

been timely resolved, the Office of Safe Schools will advise the Commissioner 

of Education who will facilitate compliance to the maximum extent provided 

under law, as provided in Section 1001.11(9), F.S. 

D.  Safety Requirements 

The Office of Safe Schools will monitor schools and school districts for 

compliance with the safety requirements set forth in subsections (7) through (20) 

of rule 6A-1.0018  

E.  Safe-School Officer Staffing and Assignment 

a.  Clay County District Schools shall assign at least one safe-school officer at 

each school facility (See below definition of school facility) within the district, as 

provided in Section 1006.12, F.S. 

b.  Assignments to Clay County District Schools are as follows: 

1.  The Clay County District Schools Police Chief or designee shall assign a 

district school safety officer(s) (Police Officer/ SRO) which best meets the 

needs of the district and the overall safety and security of each campus. 

This directive is not limited to one safe school officer.    

2.  The district school safety specialist shall assign school guardians, in 

concurrence with the district police chief for the overall safety and security 

of each campus. This directive is not limited to one safe school officer. 

c.  A Clay County school facility means a public K-12 school, including a charter 

school, with a Master School Identification Number (MSID) number as 

provided under Rule 6A-1.0016, F.A.C., with the following exceptions: 

1.  Clay County Schools with separate MSID numbers that are located at the 

same physical location and are co-located with each other are a single 

school facility. 

2.  Schools that are located at separate physical locations and are not co-

located, but share one MSID number are separate school facilities. 

3.  A school facility does not include: 

a.  Schools without a physical location for instruction of students, such as 

virtual schools, virtual instruction programs, virtual course offerings, 

franchises of the Florida Virtual School and virtual charter schools; 

Page 326 of 354

DRAFT



5 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

b.  Settings where instruction is provided in a county jail or state prison, in a 

Department of Juvenile Justice facility or program, in a hospital, or while 

a student is homebound; 

c.   Schools that provide only pre kindergarten or adult education;  

d.  Technical centers under Section 1004.91, F.S.; and 

e.  Private schools, regardless of whether or not their students receive state 

scholarship funds under Chapter 1002, F.S. 

4.  It is the Clay County District Schools’ Policy to assign a safe-school officer 

to each Clay County School facility in accordance with rule  6A-1.0018 and 

each safe school officer must be present, at a minimum, during the school 

day when the school facility is open for instruction, as defined by the Clay 

County School Board Calendar.  

5.  A safe-school officer must be present, at a minimum, during the school day 

when the school facility is open for instruction, as defined by the district 

school board calendar. The Clay County Districts Schools policy for safe-

school officer assignment outside of the regular school day is as follows: 

a.  During Clay County District Schools’ extracurricular activities, the 

number or persons in attendance, the ratio of staff members to students, 

other safety measures available and/or the intelligence based 

consideration(s) surrounding the event may be considered in having one or 

more safe school officer at the event; or 

b. As directed by the Superintendent or their designee to provide a safe 

school officer at a Clay County District Schools’ event. 

c. Summer School in accordance with the Clay County Schools Board 

Calendar 

6.  The Clay County District Schools’ School Safety Specialist or designee 

shall survey all assigned safe-school officers upon Clay County District 

Schools’ facilities, at least annually. The Office of Safe Schools shall 

conduct a survey regarding safe-school officer assignment by school. 

School Safety Specialists are responsible for completion of the survey 

when requested by the Office of Safe Schools. The survey is usually done 

electronically by request of the Office of Safe Schools.  

F.   Alyssa’s Alert 

a.   Clay County District Schools has established and contracted with a 

Department of Education and Office of Safe Schools approved vendor. In 

compliance with Alyssa’s Law, 1006.07(4)(c), F.S, the required mobile 

emergency notification is available via a smart device application. This 

electronic mobile application is available to all school personnel. 

 

1.   Training for the use of and training on how to download the application 

can be made to the Office of the Clay County School Safety Specialist.   

 

Page 327 of 354

DRAFT



6 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

 

G.  Fortify Florida 

 

 a.  Clay County Districts Schools are required by rule 6A-1.0018 to maintain 

current school listings in the FortifyFL application, including: 

 

1.  School name 

2.  Address 

3.  MSID number 

4.  The school safety specialist is required to ensure FortifyFL is updated 

within five (5) school days of a school opening or closing, or when any 

other change occurs that impacts the accuracy of district-provided 

information. 

5.  The School Safety Specialist is required to maintain current contact 

information (telephone number and email address) in the FortifyFL 

application for each school’s administrator and for the school safety 

specialist. 

6.  The School Safety Specialist is required to promote FortifyFL, as 

provided in Section 943.082(4)(b), F.S. This is achieved by but not 

limited to: 

a.  advertise FortifyFL on the district website 

b.  on school campuses 

c.  in newsletters 

d.  school publications; 

7.  The School Safety Specialist shall ensure district information services 

install(s) the FortifyFL app on mobile devices issued to students; 

computer, bookmark the FortifyFL website on all computer devices 

issued to students. 

8.  Credentials to add or edit information into Fortify Florida are granted 

through the Florida Department of Law Enforcement. 

 

H.  Threat Assessments and Threat Assessment Team  

 

a.   Clay County District Schools has identified the need to have active threat 

assessment teams at each school in partnership with the Clay County 

District Schools Office of Culture and Climate. Behavioral health is 

important to a safe and conducive learning environment while ensuring 

students facing or are in crisis receive services needed.  The purpose of a 

threat assessment team is to establish an understanding of a threat 

(transient or substantial) and focus on behaviors that pose a threat to 

school safety while serving as a preventative measure to identify needs 

and provide support to students.  

Page 328 of 354

DRAFT



7 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

b.  This process of identifying types of threats, how to mitigate threats and 

how to identify services needed are accomplished in what is known as a 

care assessment.  

c.  It is the policy of the Clay County District Schools to be consistent with rule 

6A-1.0018 on how threat assessment teams are created at each Clay 

County District School.  

1.  Clay County District Schools threat assessment team shall include the 

persons with expertise in counseling, instruction, school administration, 

and law enforcement, as provided in Section 1006.07(7)(a), F.S. 

d.  A counseling team member must be a school-based mental health 

services provider that is able to access student mental health records if 

needed.  

e.  The law enforcement team member must be a sworn law enforcement 

officer, as defined by Section 943.10(1), F.S., including a School 

Resource Office, school-safety officer, or other active law enforcement 

officer. At a minimum, a law enforcement officer serving on a threat 

assessment team must have access to local Records Management 

System information, the Criminal Justice Information System, and the 

Florida Crime Information Center and National Crime Information Center 

databases. Officers serving on school-based threat assessment teams 

must also have clearance to review Criminal Justice Information and 

Criminal History Record Information. 

f.  A school guardian, as defined under Section 1006.12(3), F.S., or a school 

security guard, as defined under Section 1006.12(4), F.S., may not serve 

in lieu of a  law enforcement member of a threat assessment team. 

However, a school guardian or security guard may serve on the threat 

assessment team. 

g.  Each school-based threat assessment team must use the Comprehensive 

School Threat Assessment Guidelines/ Threat Assessment and Response 

Protocol form CSTAG 2021 to assess the behavior of persons who may 

pose a threat to school staff or students and to coordinate intervention and 

services for such persons. 

h.  Training. All threat assessment team members must be trained on the 

CSTAG model. For assistance in accessing this training, the School 

Safety Specialist must contact the Office of Safe Schools in writing at 

SafeSchools@fldoe.org. 

i.    For the 2021-22 school year, each member of a threat assessment team 

must complete Office-approved training on the CSTAG model no later 

than December 31, 2021. 

j.    Each School year and beginning with the 2022-23 school year, threat 

assessment teams must be fully staffed and all team members must have 

completed CSTAG training before the start of the school year. Those 

Page 329 of 354

DRAFT



8 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

appointed to threat assessment teams after the start of the school year 

must complete CSTAG training within ninety (90) days of appointment. 

k.  Threat assessment teams are required and shall have monthly meetings. 

Each school-based threat assessment team must meet to fulfill its duties 

of assessing and intervening with persons whose behavior may pose a 

threat to school staff or students. 

1.  Reporting -  The district must ensure that all threat assessment teams 

in the district report to the Florida Department of Education - Office of 

Safe Schools on the team’s activities during the previous school year. 

The Office of the School Safety Specialists shall ensure all schools in 

the district timely report information required by this paragraph. 

Information described below is due by October 1 and must be reported 

using the FSSAT: 

l.   The Office of the School Safety Specialist shall collect reports from each 

threat assessment team, tabulate statistical information from the entire 

district for submission to the FSSAT by July 15 after each school year.  

1.  For the 2021-22 school year, the total number of threat assessments 

conducted using the threat assessment form, the number of transient 

threats and the number of substantive threats shall be recorded. 

2.  Each School year, but no later than the beginning of the 2022- 2023 

school year, the total number of threat assessments conducted using 

the threat assessment form, the number of transient threats, and the 

number of substantive threats and shall include the gender, race, and 

grade level of all students assessed by the threat assessment team. 

 

I.   School Environment Safety Incident reporting (SESIR) 

 

a.   The Clay County District School Superintendent must designate person(s) 

responsible for SESIR reporting for their district and ensure that those 

persons receive live or online training, as provided in Rule 6A-1.0017(10), 

F.A.C. 

1.  Training can be obtained at www.sesir.org  

 

J.   Zero-Tolerance Policies and Agreements with Law Enforcement. 

a.   Clay County District Schools shall have zero-tolerance policy as outlined 

and contained in the Student Code of Conduct approved by the school 

board. The Student Code of Conduct contains directives that define acts 

that require consultation with and reporting or referral to law enforcement, 

as provided by Section 1006.13, F.S 

b.  The district shall have an agreement with the county sheriff’s office (if 

applicable) and local police departments for reporting acts that pose a 

threat to school safety, as provided by Section 1006.13(4), F.S.. Those 

Page 330 of 354

DRAFT



9 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

agreements shall be incorporated with inter-local agreements or by 

amendment to the local agreement, reviewed and renewable annually.  

c.  The district has adopted a cooperative agreement with the Department of 

Juvenile Justice regarding enforcement of no contact orders, as provided 

by Section 1006.13(6), F.S. 

 

K.  School Security Risk Assessments and the FSSAT 

a.   Each year, the school safety specialist must complete a school security 

risk assessment beginning at the end of the school year and completed on 

or before October 1 at each public school in their district using the FSSAT, 

as provided in Section 1006.07(6)(a)4., F.S., and Section 1006.1493, F.S. 

The school security risk assessment is not required for virtual schools or 

programs that do not have a physical school site. 

b.   School safety specialists must report to the Department of Education - 

Office of Safe Schools by October 15 of each year, in the FSSAT, that the 

required school security risk assessments are completed, as provided in 

Section 1011.62(15), F.S.  

c.   School safety specialists must provide recommendations to the district 

school board and the district school superintendent, no later than the 

September Clay County School Board workshop, identifying strategies 

and activities the board should implement to improve safety and security, 

as provided in Section 1006.07(6)(a)4., F.S.. This shall be conducted “in 

the shade” and is exempt from public disclosure.  

d.   Within thirty (30) days, and no later than the October Clay County School 

Board regular meeting,  after the district school board meets to receive 

implementation of such findings, but not later than November 1, school 

safety specialists must submit a district best-practices assessment in the 

FSSAT which includes the school security risk assessment findings and 

recommendations as provided in Section 1006.07(6)(a)4., F.S. 

e.   It is the policy of the Clay County District Schools and Clay County School 

Board to allow and assist, if needed, Clay County Charter School’s 

personnel access and input security assessment data into the FSSAT. In 

the event input access is restricted, Clay County District personnel may 

help gather information from charter schools so that FSSAT reporting 

requirements, including those for Fortify FL, threat assessment teams and 

active assailant response plans, include data from charter schools.   

 

L.  Clay County School’s Safety Recommendations (CCFR, CCSO, OPPD, 

GCSPD) 

a.  The Clay County District School Safety Specialist shall coordinate with 

public safety agencies, as defined in Section 365.171, F.S., which are 

designated first responders to a school’s campus, tour each school’s 

Page 331 of 354

DRAFT



10 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

campus once every three (3) years and provide recommendations related 

to school safety as needed. 

b.   Completion of such tours and any recommendations must be documented 

in each school’s security risk assessment within FSSAT. 

c.   If school safety recommendations are made by public safety agencies, 

those recommendations shall be included in the school safety specialist’s 

report to the superintendent and school board and outlined in the 

September Clay County School Board Workshop. 

 

M.  Emergency drills (Fire and Active Assailant) 

a.  Active shooter and hostage situation drills (aka Lock Down Drills) or 

weather drills must be conducted at least as often as fire drills. These drills 

are required by the Florida Fire Prevention Code, as adopted by the State 

Fire Marshal, available at www.myfloridacfo.com. and drills are to be 

conducted while the facility is in session. 

1.  The above listed drills shall be conducted every month while the 

facilities are in session.  

2.  Drills shall be recorded on official CCDS drill reports and are stored in 

individual share drives, labeled by school name. 

3.  Access to school share drive is granted by the Office of the School 

Safety Specialist. 

4.  The School Safety Specialist shall monitor and inspect drill reports for 

timeliness submission, accuracy and completeness of the report.  

5.  Principals shall be notified in writing (email or official letter) for 

deficiencies or failure to conduct drills in accordance with this policy or 

in accordance with Florida Fire Prevention Code, as adopted by the 

State Fire Marshal     

 

N.  Active Assailant Response and Reunification Plans 

a.   The Clay District's active assailant response plan, and Reunification Plan 

written and approved by the Clay County School Board, in accordance 

with  Section 1006.07(6)(c), F.S., includes plans and expectations for 

responding to an active assailant situation using the following three (3) 

strategies: evading or evacuating, taking cover or hiding, and responding 

to or fighting back. 

b.   The School safety specials shall ensure all school personnel are trained 

annually on the procedures set forth in the district’s active assailant 

response plan 

c.   All personnel at every school shall attend training in person or by video 

presentation administered the Office of the School Safety Specialist or 

designee. Their attendance shall be recorded on a roster indicating date 

and time of attendance. The completed roster shall be scanned and stored 

Page 332 of 354

DRAFT



11 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

in the respective Google school’s safety and security folder annually. The 

original document shall be forwarded to the Office of the School safety 

specialist.  The annual training for all school personnel must be 

documented in the FSSAT by October 1 of each year. 

 

O.  School Safety Specialist Training 

a.   The Clay County District Schools Superintendent shall designate a School 

Safety Specialist for the district that is an administrator employed by the 

district as provided by Section 1006.07(6)(a), F. S. 

b.   Within thirty (30) calendar days of appointment, school safety specialists 

must complete the following online Federal Emergency Management 

Agency Independent Study courses found at https://training.fema.gov/. 

School safety specialists must maintain certificates of completion. 

1.   Multi-Hazard Planning for Childcare; Introduction to the Incident 

Command System,  

2.   ICS 100; Preparing for Mass Casualty Incidents: A Guide for Schools, 

Higher Education, and Houses of Worship;  

3.   Multi-Hazard Emergency Planning for Schools; and Planning for the 

Needs of Children in Disasters. These courses can be found at 

https://training.fema.gov/. School Safety Specialists must maintain 

certificates of completion. 

4.   Within one (1) year of appointment, and annually thereafter, School 

Safety Specialists must earn a certificate of completion of School 

Safety Specialist training provided by the Office of Safe Schools. 

 

P.  Reporting Safe-School Officer Discipline, Dismissal or Discharge of Firearm. 

a.   Discharge of a weapon. The school superintendent, via the Office of 

Safety and Security shall notify the Office of Safe Schools when a safe-

school officer assigned to any school facility in or upon Clay County 

District Schools discharges a firearm in the exercise of safe-school officer 

duties, other than for training purposes, as provided in Section 1006.12(5), 

F.S.  

b.   Notification must be made no later than seventy-two (72) hours of the 

incident by submitting Form SSON-2021 to SafeSchools@fldoe.org.  

c.   Officer dismissal or discipline: 

1.  The school superintendent, via the Office of Safety and Security shall 

notify the Office of Safe Schools when there is an allegation of 

misconduct that results in a safe school officer being placed on 

administrative leave or reassigned pending completion of an 

investigation using the procedure set forth in subparagraph. Within 

fifteen (15) days of completion of the investigation, updated information 

Page 333 of 354

DRAFT



12 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

regarding the result of the investigation must be provided to the Office 

of Safe Schools. 

2.  The Superintendent, via the Office of Safety and Security shall notify 

the Office of Safe Schools when a safe-school officer assigned to a 

school facility in the district has been disciplined for misconduct or has 

been dismissed from their duties as a safe-school officer by their 

employer, including in cases where the officer is reassigned or moved 

to another school location, whether by a school district, charter school, 

law enforcement agency, or private security company, as provided in 

Section 1006.12(5), F.S. Notification must be made no later than 

seventy-two (72) hours of the dismissal or disciplinary action by 

submitting Form SSON-2021 to SafeSchools@fldoe.org. 

d.   The Clay County District Schools, School Safety Specialist, in cooperation 

with Charter Schools’ Administrations shall ensure all charter schools 

have policy to report discipline and dismissal of safe-school officers and 

any discharge of an officer’s weapon outside of training activities. 

e.   The school safety specialist shall ensure all Clay County Charter Schools, 

law enforcement agencies, and private security firms employing or 

contracting with safe-school officers timely report discipline and dismissal 

of safe-school officers and any discharge of an officer’s weapon outside of 

training activities.  

f.   This mandate ensures Clay County District Schools meets the reporting 

requirements of the rules relating to School Safety Requirements and 

Monitoring under 6A-1.0018 18(c) 

 

Q.  Charter School Safety Requirements 

 

a.   Monitoring of safety requirements outlined in this directive for all Clay 

County Charter Schools is the responsibility of the Clay County District 

Schools Safety Specialist. The Office of Safe Schools, as provided in 

subsection (5) of the rules, will provide any notices of suspected 

deficiency occurring at or by a charter school, to the district’s School 

Safety Specialist for investigation and response.  

b.   To ensure the Clay County District School Safety Specialist is able to 

monitor and report on school safety and security at any Clay County 

Charter School, each charter school must: 

1.   Provide contact information in the manner and frequency required by 

the School Safety Specialist; 

2.   Timely respond to requests for information and access made by the 

School Safety Specialist and the Office of Safe Schools related to 

safety requirements set forth in this rule; and 

Page 334 of 354

DRAFT



13 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

3.   Coordinate with the School Safety Specialist on curing suspected 

deficiencies identified by the Specialist and/or the Office of Safe 

Schools. 

c.   Charter schools and their governing boards are responsible for meeting 

the safety requirements set forth in the rules. All safety requirements as 

set forth in subsections (6) - (18) of those rules apply to charter schools, 

with any changes to the requirements set forth below: 

1.   Safe-school officer 

a.    Clay County District Schools Safety Specialist is responsible for 

ensuring all charter school facilities within their district have at least 

one (1) safe-school officer assigned and present on campus while 

school is in session. When requested or as mutually agreed upon, 

Charter schools shall provide the district with rosters or timesheets 

indicating when a safe school officer has been assigned and 

present on their respective campus. 

b.   Each Clay County Charter School is authorized to establish its own 

policy on when a safe school officer must be assigned to a school 

facility for extracurricular activities and for school sponsored events 

or adopt the district’s policy. 

c.   Clay County Districts Schools and charter school governing boards 

must work together to determine the type of Safe School Officer 

under Section 1006.12, F.S., that will be assigned to each charter 

school. The  

d.   Safe School Officer options for a charter school are: 

1.   Upon agreement between the school district and charter school, 

a school resource officer, pursuant to Section 1006.13(1), F.S. 

2.   A school guardian, pursuant to Section 1006.13(3), F.S. and 

3.   A school security guard, pursuant to Section 1006.13(4), F.S 

e.   Clay County District School’s Safety Specialist must keep accurate 

records of the number and type of safe-school officers assigned to 

each Clay County Charter School in the district. The Clay County 

Charter Schools shall notify the Clay County District Schools Safety 

Specialist at the beginning of each school year, beginning in the 

2021-2022 SY, the type of safe school officer assigned to the 

school. 

2.   Alyssa’s Alert 

a.   Clay County Charter Schools are authorized to select any mobile 

panic alert system that meets all requirements of Section 

1006.07(4), F.S., including a system that is not the same one 

selected by the charter’s sponsor (Clay County District Schools). 

Prior to contracting for a system that differs from that used by the 

Page 335 of 354

DRAFT



14 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

charter’s sponsor, a charter school must consult with the sponsor 

on any potential safety impact of using a different system. 

      3.  Fortify Florida 

a.   The requirements set forth for Clay County District Schools as 

provided in subsection (9) of the rule for FortifyFL apply to the Clay 

County charter schools' governing board.  

b.   Where a charter school lack input access to FortifyFL, the charter’s 

governing board must ensure that the information for school listings 

and school contacts, as provided in paragraphs (9)(a) and (b) of the 

rule, are timely provided to the district school safety specialist. 

c.   A charter school governing board must ensure that FortifyFL 

contains contact information (telephone number and email address) 

for a school administrator designated by the governing board or 

principal to receive tips and notifications from Fortify Florida for the 

charter school. 

d.   Crime tips or threat reports received via Fortify Florida, are 

received in the Clay County Sheriff’s Office Communication Center, 

the Communications Center of the Clay County District Schools’ 

Police Department and district safety staff. Crimes and tips 

regarding Clay County Charter Schools are in the jurisdiction of the 

Clay County Sheriff’s Office.    

4.   Threat Assessment Teams  

 a.   A charter school governing board is authorized to adopt its own 

threat assessment policies or adopt the district’s policies, as long 

as the charter school’s policies meet the requirements of Section 

1006.07(7), F.S., and the requirements of subsection (10) of rule. 

5.   SESIR  

a.  The SESIR duties set forth in subsection (11) of the rule,  must be 

performed by the charter school’s principal or equivalent personnel, 

as provided in Rule 6A-1.0017(11), F.A.C. 

6    Charter School’s Zero Tolerance Policies and Agreements with Law 

Enforcement for Clay County Charter Schools. 

a.   The school safety specialist shall ensure Clay County Charter 

Schools comply with SESIR incident reporting procedures set forth 

in Rule 6A-1.0017, F.A.C., 

b.   Clay County Charter Schools’ governing boards must establish 

policies identifying which incidents require consultation with or 

referral to law enforcement. In lieu of establishing their own 

policies, charter schools are authorized to adopt the Clay County 

District Schools’ policy. 

c.   Notice shall be given to the Clay County District Schools Safety 

Specialist of their intent to develop their own policy regarding 

Page 336 of 354

DRAFT



15 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

identifying which incidents require consultation with or referral to 

law enforcement or may adopt the Clay County District Schools 

policy.  

7.  Charter School’s l Security Risk Assessments and the FSSAT 

a.   Each year, the Clay County District Schools’ Safety Specialist 

shall ensure charter schools complete a school security risk 

assessment on or before October 1, using the FSSAT, as 

provided in Section 1006.07(6)(a)4., F.S., and Section 1006.1493, 

F.S.  

b.   Clay County District Schools’ Safety Specialists must report by 

October 15 each year in the FSSAT that required school security 

risk assessments are completed, as provided in Section 

1011.62(15), F.S. ,this includes the charter school findings.  

g.   Clay County District Schools’ Safety Specialist will allow Clay 

County Charter Schools’  selected personnel input access to the 

FSSAT for self-assessment of their respective schools in 

accordance with  Section 1011.62(15), F.S.  

8.  First Responders’ School Safety Recommendations Clay County 

Charter School’s 

a.  Clay County District Schools’ Safety Specialist will assist charter 

schools in coordinating with public safety agencies, as defined in 

Section 365.171, F.S., that are designated first responders to a 

school’s campus to tour each charter school’s campus once every 

three (3) years and to provide recommendations related to school 

safety. 

b.  Completion of such tours and any recommendations must be 

documented in each school’s security risk assessment within 

FSSAT. 

c.  Clay County District Schools and Charter Schools safety 

recommendations made by public safety agencies shall be 

included in the Clay County District Schools’ Safety Specialist’s 

report to the Superintendent and Clay County School Board. 

  9.   Charter School’s emergency drills 

a.  Active shooter and hostage situation drills (aka Lock Down Drills) 

and weather drills must be conducted at least as often as fire drills 

are required by the Florida Fire Prevention Code, as adopted by 

the State Fire Marshal, available at www.myfloridacfo.com. 

b.  Charter Schools must document completion of emergency drills at 

all school facilities in the district. Charter schools can use the 

Google documents in their respective share drive to record all 

emergency drills (Fire and Lockdown Drill)  

Page 337 of 354

DRAFT



16 
School Board Policy 9.17 School Safety Requirements and Monitoring 

 

c.  Clay County Charter Schools drills shall be shared with the Clay 

County Schools Safety Specialist.  

10.   Clay County Charter School’s Active Assailant  

         Response Plans 

a. Each Clay County Charter School governing body must adopt an 

active assailant response plan and is confidential, as provided in 

Section 1006.07(6)(c), F.S. Active assailant response plans must 

include, at a minimum, plans and expectations for responding to 

an active assailant situation using the following three (3) 

strategies: evading or evacuating, taking cover or hiding, and 

responding to or fighting back. 

b. All Clay County Charter School personnel must be trained 

annually on the procedures in the Clay County Charter School 

active assailant response plan. Completion of this annual training 

for all school personnel must be documented in the FSSAT by 

October 1 of each year. 

  

R.  Virtual Schools 

a.   Clay County Virtual Schools are bound by and are governed by the Clay 

County Schools Board policies and are responsible for meeting the safety 

requirements set forth except for the requirement to complete the Clay 

County District’s School Security Risk Assessments and the FSSAT as 

they do not have physical location for instruction of students. 

b.   Clay County Virtual School may meet the requirements for the district's 

agreement to reporting acts that pose a threat to school safety to law 

enforcement  as provided by Section 1006.13(4), F.S. 

Page 338 of 354

DRAFT



Page 339 of 354

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

October 7, 2021 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Board Policy, to wit:  General Order 9.18, which General Order sets forth the
Threat Assesment Policy for All Clay County District schools.

Description
The School Board, previously approved Standard Operating Procedure 10.25. That Procedure has been re-designated a General
Order, renumbered to 9.18 and reviewed for accuracy as required by law. The General Order sets forth the Threat Assesment
Policy for All Clay County District schools.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board, previously approved Standard Operating Procedure 10.25. That Procedure has been re-designated a General
Order, re-numbered and Amended

Expected Outcomes
Public Hearing will be submitted to the public for comment and to the Board for approval in the manner contemplated by the
Administrative Procedures Act.

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve the Board Policy as advertised, to wit: General Order 9.18.

Contact
Kenneth Wagner, Chief, CCDSPD, (904)336-0101, kenneth.wagner@myoneclayspd.net; J. Bruce Bickner, School Board
Attorney, (904)336-6507, james.bickner@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

9.18  CCDS Threat Assessment Policy.pdf

Legal Adv. PH_SB Policy 9.17-9.18.pdf

Page 340 of 354

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/918-ccds-threat-assessment-policy.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/legal-adv-ph_sb-policy-917-918_1.pdf


1 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

SECTION IX 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
9.18   THREAT ASSESSMENT 

 
 
 
 
A.  Purpose:  
 

In accordance with Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, the 
following is the Clay County District School Threat Assessment Policy for all 
schools. The Clay County District Schools shall annually review these policies 
and recommend any changes for the upcoming school year. The School Safety 
Specials (or designee) shall distribute this policy, via electronically, to school 
administrators by August 1 of each year. The threat assessment policy shall be 
interpreted and applied consistently with all applicable state and federal laws. The 
policy was developed in accordance with the legislation enacted by the State of 
Florida (Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School Public Safety Act, SB 7026), 
established research, and recognized standards of practice regarding threat 
assessment and management in school settings.  
 
Threat: A threat is a communication of intent to harm someone that may be 
spoken, written, gestured or expressed in some other form, such as via text 
messaging, email or other digital means. An expression of intent to harm 
someone is considered a threat regardless of whether it is communicated to 
the intended target(s) or whether the intended target is aware of the threat. 
Threats may be implied by behavior that an observer would reasonably regard 
as threatening, planning or preparing to commit a violent act. Not all types of 
misbehavior that may warrant discipline or even criminal consequences are 
threats. It is limited to instances where there is a threat to harm someone else. 
If there is doubt, the communication or behavior should be treated as a threat 
and a threat assessment should be conducted.  
 
Threat Assessment: The threat assessment is a systematic process that is 
designed to identify situations/persons of concern, investigate and gather 
information, and assess and manage the situation in order to mitigate risk. It is 
a fact-based process that emphasizes identification, evaluation, intervention 
and follow-up in order to prevent serious threats of harm or actual acts of 
violence from occurring. 

 
● Threat assessment is not an emergency or crisis response. If there is 

an indication that violence is imminent, such as when a person is at 
school with a gun, a crisis response is indicated. School staff must take 
immediate action by notifying the School Resource Officer and/or 
calling 911 and following local crisis or emergency response plans.  

 
● Threat assessment is not a disciplinary process. District procedures              

regarding discipline and referral to law enforcement should be 
followed, no    matter the outcome of a threat assessment. Information 
learned in a threat    assessment may be used in disciplinary 
proceedings, where appropriate.  

Page 341 of 354

DRAFT



2 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

 
● Threat assessment is not a suicide or self-harm assessment. While 

there may be cases where a threat to harm others may be 
accompanied by a threat to harm oneself, in most cases, a threat 
assessment should not be completed when someone is threatening 
suicide or self-harm. The individual still may require intervention and 
assistance, but it is a different process than a threat assessment. 
Threat assessment is focused on threats of harm to others. 

  
● Threat assessment is not a means to profile the next school shooter.  

There is no known profile of a school shooter or student attacker. The 
threat assessment process is focused on prevention, not prediction.  
Because a student has been the subject of a threat assessment does 
not mean the student is a potential shooter or attacker; it simply means 
that a threat (whether minor or serious) was reported and evaluated by 
the threat assessment team.   

 
Threat Assessment Team: The threat assessment team shall include, 
pursuant to Florida statute (s.1006.07(7), F.S.) persons with expertise in 
counseling, instruction, school administration, principal, when available, and 
law enforcement. Persons with expertise in counseling include school 
counselors, school psychologists, school social workers, and family 
counselors. Additional personnel with knowledge of the child or 
circumstances may also serve as members of the team.  
 

Aberrant Behavior: Behavior which is atypical for the person or situation 
and causes concern for the safety or well-being of those involved. 
Aberrant behavior for an individual involves actions, statements, 
communications or responses that are unusual for the person or situation; 
actions that could lead to violence toward self or others; or are reasonably 
perceived as threatening or causing concern for the well-being of the 
person. These can include, but are not limited to:  
 

● Unusual social distancing or isolation from peers and family 
members;  

 
● Sullen or depressed behavior from an otherwise friendly and 

positive person;  
 
● Out-of-context outbursts of verbal or physical aggression;  
  
● Increased levels of agitation, frustration and anger; 
  
● Confrontational, accusatory or blaming behavior; an unusual interest in 

or fascination with weapons; and a fixation on violence as means of 
addressing a grievance. 

 
Imminent Threat: An imminent threat exists when the person’s 
behavior/situation poses a clear and immediate threat of serious violence 
toward self or others that requires containment action to protect identified or 
identifiable target(s); and may also exhibit behavior that requires intervention.  

Page 342 of 354

DRAFT



3 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

 
Transient Threats: Threats where there is not a sustained intent to harm. The 
critical question is whether the person intends to carry out the threat, or 
whether the threat was made in the heat of the moment as an expression of 
anger, frustration or humor without intent to harm. Transient threats can be 
resolved with an apology, retraction or explanation by the person who made 
the threat.  
 
Substantive Threats: Threats where the intent to harm is present, or not 
clear, and require protective action. The question is whether there is an 
express intent to physically injure someone beyond the immediate situation 
and there is at least some risk that the person will carry out the threat. If there 
is doubt or if the threat cannot clearly be categorized as transient, threats 
should be treated as substantive.  

1.  Serious substantive threats are threats to hit, fight or beat up 

another person.  

2.  Very serious substantive threats are threats to kill, rape or cause 

serious injury with a weapon.  

 

Baker Act: Florida’s Mental Health Act, known as the Baker Act (ss. 394.451- 
394.47892, F.S.), provides for voluntary and involuntary admission for mental 
health examinations and also provides procedures for civil commitment. 
Generally, when a person says someone “was Baker Acted,” it means that the 
person was held up to 72 hours for an involuntary examination based on a 
threat of harm to themselves or others. Involuntary examination can be 
initiated by a law enforcement officer, physician, clinical psychologist, 
psychiatric nurse, clinical social worker or by the court through an ex parte 
order based on testimony from the person’s friends or family. During that 72 
hours, the treating physician at a Baker Act facility will determine whether the 
person can be released or whether the person meets the criteria for 
commitment or additional inpatient care.  
 

B.  Procedure:  
 

Each school principal shall identify a school-based threat assessment team with 
the mandatory team members. This team shall be identified and reported to the 
Office of the School Safety Specialist before students report to school each year.  
 
1. The coordination of resources and assessment of and intervention 

with individuals whose behavior may pose a threat to the safety of 
staff or students pursuant to s. 1006.07(7), F.S. must be addressed.  

 
a. The identification of mental health services available in the district/county, 

as required by s. 1012.584(4), F.S., and the procedure for referrals to 
those mental health services.  

 

b. The procedures for behavioral threat assessments using the 
instrument, Comprehensive School Threat Assessment 
Guidelines (CSTAG), adopted by the Office of Safe Schools. s. 

Page 343 of 354

DRAFT



4 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

1006.07(7)(a), F.S.  
 
c. All school-based administrators and threat assessment team members 

must attend and complete mandatory threat assessment training. Also 
members of threat assessment teams and school administrators shall be 
trained in the use of the CSTAG instrument adopted by Office of Safe 
Schools.  

 
d. All threats of violence or physical harm to self or others shall be taken 

seriously, since the primary goal of threat assessment is the safety of all 
persons involved.  

 
e. Threat assessment team shall consult with law enforcement when a 

student exhibits a pattern of behavior, based on previous acts or the 
severity of the act, which would pose a threat to school safety 
(1006.13(2)(f), F.S. Policy of zero tolerance for crime and victimization).  

 
f.  School administrators shall report threats to law enforcement and define 

criteria for reporting to a law enforcement agency any act that poses a 
threat to school safety that occurs whenever or wherever students are 
within the jurisdiction of the school (1006.13(2)(a), F.S. Policy of zero 
tolerance for crime and victimization). School-based threat assessment 
teams shall adhere to the rules and responsibilities within this policy. 

 
g. School administrators shall engage local behavioral crisis resources: If an 

immediate mental health or substance abuse crisis is suspected, school 
personnel must follow policies established by the threat assessment 
team to engage behavioral health crisis resources as provided by 
1006.07(7)(e), F.S., to include: 

  
 Behavioral health crisis resources, including, but not limited to, 

mobile crisis teams and school resource officers trained in crisis 
intervention, must provide emergency intervention and 
assessment, make recommendations and refer the student for 
appropriate services.  

 Onsite school personnel must report all such situations and 
actions taken to the threat assessment team, which must 
contact other agencies involved with the student and any 
known service providers to share information and coordinate 
any necessary follow-up actions.  

 Upon the student’s transfer to a different school, the threat 
assessment team must verify that any intervention services 
provided to the student remain in place until the threat 
assessment team of the receiving school independently 
determines the need for intervention services.  

 
Each school threat assessment team will evaluate and assess each threat for risk 
level.  
 
1.  Assessing Threats:  
 

Page 344 of 354

DRAFT



5 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

a. Initial Evaluation: When a threat is reported, the threat assessment team 
should begin an initial evaluation of the situation pursuant to Clay County 
District policies. It is considered a best practice to begin this evaluation the 
same day the report is received.  

 
b. Treat assessment teams should employ a triage process, where the school 

administrator or threat assessment team leader works with at least one other 
member of the team to complete this initial evaluation.  

 
c. If there is an indication that violence is imminent, a crisis response is 

required by notifying the school resource officer or calling 911 and following 
local crisis or emergency response plans.  

 
d. If there is not an imminent threat present, or once the imminent threat is 

contained, the threat assessment team leader should ensure the threat is 
evaluated using the CSTAG model and in accordance with established 
district policies.  

 
e. Interviews: All cases, even threats that are determined to be transient, should 

include an interview of the person who made the threat. Other interviews may 
also be determined to be useful to the team’s evaluation, such as with the 
target(s) of the threat, witnesses, parents and teachers or other staff involved. 

 
f. Key questions when conducting a threat assessment (these can be 

modified for situations involving a student):  
 

- What are the student’s motives and goals? What first brought him or 
her to someone’s attention?   

- Have there been any communications suggesting ideas or intent to 
attack?   

- Has the student shown any inappropriate interest in school -   
attacks/attackers, weapons, incidents of mass violence?   

- Has the student engaged in attack-related behaviors?   
- Does the student have the capacity to carry out an act of targeted 

violence?   
- Is the student experiencing hopelessness, desperation, or despair?   
- Does the student have a trusting relationship with at least one 

responsible adult?   
- Does the student view violence as an acceptable, desirable, or the 

only way to solve a problem?   
- Are the student’s conversation and “story” consistent with his or her 

actions?   
- Are other people concerned about the student’s potential for 

violence?   
- What circumstances might affect the likelihood of an attack?  
 

2.  Responding to Threats  
 

a.  The CSTAG leads threat assessment teams through a 5-step “School 
Threat Assessment Decision Tree.” Each step in the process is critical. The 
decision tree is summarized below:  

Page 345 of 354

DRAFT



6 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

 
STEP 1:  Analyze information and classify the threat.  
 
Once the threat assessment team has interviewed the student and 
gathered necessary information, the team determines whether a threat is 
present, and if so, the kind of threat and the response indicated. 
 
 If there is not a communication of an intent to harm someone or behavior 

suggesting an intent to harm someone, then there is not a threat. 
Remember, even if a threat is not present, the individual may still be 
expressing anger or exhibiting behavior that merits attention or requires 
services.  

 
- If there is a threat of suicide or self-harm, additional mental health 

assessments are needed. These are done outside the threat 
assessment process unless there is also a threat to harm others. While 
threat assessment and suicide risk assessment are generally two 
separate processes, there may be cases where both a threat to others 
and a threat to self are present. Threat assessment teams should 
involve mental and behavioral health experts to ensure the correct 
screenings and referrals are completed.  

 
- Even if no threat is present, the student may still be subject to 

disciplinary consequences as a result of the behavior or statement at 
issue. Local procedures regarding student discipline and involvement of 
law enforcement should be followed.  

 
• Threats of violence or physical harm to self or others must be reported to 

the superintendent or their designee. The threat assessment team must 
immediately report its determination that a student poses a threat of 
violence or physical harm to self or others. s. 1006.07(7)(b). The 
superintendent or designee must immediately attempt to notify the 
student’s parent or legal guardian.  s. 1006.07(7)(b), F.S.  

 
- This required reporting does not prevent school personnel from 

taking immediate action to address an imminent threat, including 
contacting law enforcement and engaging in local crisis response 
procedures. s.1006.07(7)(b), F.S.  

- If an immediate mental health or substance abuse crisis is suspected, 
school personnel must follow policies established by the threat 
assessment team to engage local behavioral crisis resources, including, 
but not limited to, mobile crisis teams and SROs trained in crisis 
intervention. s.1006.07(7)(e), F.S.  

- Nothing prevents the threat assessment team from notifying the 
superintendent (or designee) of any individual (other than a student) 
who poses a threat of violence or physical harm to self or others. 
Reporting is required per s. 1006.07(7)(b), F.S.  

- Schools must follow the Clay County District Schools, Student Code of 
Conduct, regarding consulting with and reporting or referring to law 
enforcement and per s. 1006.13,  F.S.  

 
STEP 2: If a threat is identified, determine if the threat is transient. A 

Page 346 of 354

DRAFT



7 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

transient threat may be an expression of anger, rhetoric, humor or 
frustration that can be easily resolved with no sustained intent to harm 
another person.  
 
• Consider whether the person being assessed retracted the threat, offered 

an explanation or offered an apology that indicates no future intent to harm 
someone. When in doubt, treat the threat as substantive.  

 
• Determining the appropriate response to a transient threat depends on the 

context of the threat, whether the threat requires disciplinary action and 
what is necessary to resolve the situation. Many transient cases come 
from a misunderstanding of what was communicated, something taken out 
of context, or a statement made in the heat of the moment without actions 
to indicate intent to cause harm. Transient threats can often be resolved 
with a clarification, explanation, retraction or an apology – all of which (in 
conjunction with the absence of any other behaviors of concern) indicate 
that the threat is minimal. Responses to transient threats may include, but 
are not limited to:  

 
- Parent notification: Transient threats, by definition, do not appear to 

pose an ongoing threat to safety and should not require protective 
action. Parents or guardians of the student who made a transient threat, 
as well as parents or guardians of the target (when the target is a 
student) may be notified at the discretion of the threat assessment 
team. Parents should be assured that a threat has been resolved and 
told of any action taken.  

- Discipline: Students making transient threats may be subject to 
disciplinary action based on school board policy.  

- Additional resources: Transient threats may be resolved with referral to 
school-based or community-based resources, as needed.   

- Monitor, as needed: The case management plan can be reevaluated 
or amended upon receipt of new information.  

 
There may be cases that were determined to be transient that may need to 
be changed to substantive. This change and the factors that lead to it 
should be documented on the Key observations form under “Threat 
Classification.”  

 
STEP 3: Respond to a substantive threat. A substantive threat is one 
where an intent to harm someone is present or not clear. Even if a threat 
appears to be transient, if there is doubt or one does not feel comfortable 
resolving the threat as transient, then the threat should be considered 
substantive. Substantive threats may be serious, meaning a threat to hit, 
fight or beat up someone else, or very serious, meaning a threat to kill, 
rape or cause very serious injury with a weapon. All substantive threats 
require protective action.  
 
 For all substantive threats, the threat assessment team should take 

immediate action to protect victims, reduce the risk of violence, and 
manage the situation. Protective actions include:   

 
- Taking precautions to protect potential victims;  

Page 347 of 354

DRAFT



8 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

- Warning potential victims and their parents;  
- Looking for ways to resolve conflicts; and  
- Disciplining the student, when appropriate.  

 
STEP 4: If the threat is a very serious substantive threat, the team should 
complete a safety evaluation. In addition to the protective actions listed 
above, when there is a very serious substantive threat, meaning a threat to 
kill, rape or cause serious injury with a weapon, the following actions are 
considered a best practice:  
 
● Take immediate precautions to protect victims. This generally includes 

notifying the potential target(s) of the threat, as well as their parent or 
guardian if the target is a student. Parents should be made aware of the 
seriousness of the threat and any responsive action.  Schools should take 
immediate action to monitor and supervise the subject of the threat so that 
the threat cannot be carried out at school, at a school event or on school 
transportation.  

 
- Screen the student for mental health services and counseling and refer 

the student for school-based or community-based services as needed. 
When a mental health condition is suspected to be the cause of the 
threat or behavior at issue, a mental health assessment should be 
conducted. Threat assessment teams should follow local procedures for 
referrals to community services or health care providers for evaluation 
or treatment.  

- Contact law enforcement. Law enforcement can assist with 
supervision and monitoring of the student and can determine the 
need for additional action. When appropriate, law enforcement 
should conduct an investigation for evidence of planning, preparation 
or criminal activity. Policies and agreements with local law 
enforcement are place for the reporting of threatening behavior. s. 
1006.13(4), F.S. School based SROs can assist where needed.  

- Develop a safety plan that reduces risk and addresses student needs. 
The plan should include a review of the student’s IEP, if the student is 
already receiving special education services, and a disability 
assessment if appropriate.  

 
• Develop a safety plan for the student to return to school. Most students 

are able to return to school following a threat assessment with 
appropriate services in place.  

 
- The school administrator should determine the conditions of 

readmission to school, which may include a required mental health 
evaluation. Situations where a parent refuses any element of the safety 
plan should be evaluated on a case-by-case basis in accordance with 
district policies and direction from legal counsel.  

 
STEP 5: Implement and monitor the safety plan. The safety plan should 
be documented in the CSTAG (Behavior Intervention Plan contained in 

CSTAG-2021) and if needed, other school based documents. This plan 
should include maintaining contact with the student.  

Page 348 of 354

DRAFT



9 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

 
• Threat assessment does not end after the initial assessment and 

response. Threat assessment is a continuous process designed to make 
sure the student continues to be able to access resources that are needed 
to be successful. Many cases should be kept open and subject to periodic 
review until the student is no longer attending that school. If the plan is no 
longer working, it may need to be revised.  

 
• Clay County District School Administrators should consider the use of 

alternatives to expulsion or law enforcement involvement where 
appropriate. While threat assessment is a separate process from student 
discipline, the actions and behaviors that bring a student to the attention 
of a threat assessment team can lead to disciplinary action and law 
enforcement involvement in some cases.  Clay County District School 
Administrators should consider alternatives to address disruptive 
behavior, such as restitution, civil citation, teen court, neighborhood 
restorative justice or similar programs, unless those alternatives would 
pose a threat to school safety. s. 1006.13(1), (8), F.S. It is considered a 
best practice to report all very serious substantive threats to law 
enforcement in accordance with district policies.  

 
C.  Roles and Responsibilities:  
 

1.  The Director of School Safety and Security shall ensure compliance with this 
policy.  

 
A.  Each school principal shall identify members of a threat assessment 

team that includes persons with expertise in counseling, instruction, 
school administration, and law enforcement in accordance with 
1006.07(7)(a), Florida Statute. Members will be trained on the roles and 
responsibilities of each team member.  

 
B.  Guardians, private security guards with guardian training, or other 

campus security staff may not serve in place of sworn law enforcement 
on threat assessment teams.  

 
a. If there is not an SRO or other sworn law enforcement officer 

assigned to the school, the Board should work with local law 
enforcement entities in order to ensure the required law enforcement 
presence on the team. Having an active, sworn law enforcement 
officer on the threat assessment team is essential because an officer 
has unique access to law enforcement databases and resources that 
inform the threat assessment process.  

 
C.  All school-based administrators and threat assessment team 

members must attend and complete mandatory threat 
assessment training. Each mandatory team member shall report 
their completion of this requirement to their principal or designee. 

  
D.  The Threat Assessment Team must provide annual training and 

guidance to students, staff, and parents on recognizing behaviors of 

Page 349 of 354

DRAFT



10 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

concern, their roles and responsibilities in reporting the behavior, and 
the various options for submitting a report, including anonymous 
reporting.  

 
E.  Each school principal must assign school-based staff members who can 

proactively monitor and respond to all incoming reports where safety is 
of concern.   

 
F.  Each threat assessment team must respond, within 24 hours when 

school is in session, to any report of a threat or any patterns of behavior 
that may pose a threat to self or others. If school is not in session, the 
school principal must immediately refer the matter to law enforcement for 
evaluation, and the threat assessment team must meet no later than the 
end of the first day school is back in session to consider the matter and 
ensure it is resolved. The team shall gather information regarding the 
specifics of the threat and/or behaviors that may pose a threat, including 
but not limited to: details of the incident or threat, witness statements, 
and relevant artifacts.  

 
G.  Every threat may not require a meeting of the entire threat assessment 

team. It is recommended that at least two team members be involved in 
the threat assessment process for transient threats. Substantive threats 
should engage several team members and may require more in-depth 
review and assessment.  

 
H.  All members of the threat assessment team should be involved with the 

assessment and intervention of individuals whose behavior poses a 
serious substantive threat.   

 
I.   When assessing a potential threat or concerning behavior, the threat 

assessment team must determine not only whether a threat has been 
made or communicated, but also if a person poses a danger to self or 
others or if they are potentially on a pathway to violence.  

 
J.  For students deemed a threat to self, the threat assessment team must 

ensure the student’s immediate safety, then refer the student to the school-
based suicide designee or the Mobile Response Team (MRT) from Clay 
Behavioral. The individual still may require intervention and assistance, but 
it is a different process than a threat assessment. Threat assessment is 
focused on threats of harm to others. 

  
a. If the threat assessment team determines that a student poses a threat 

to others, the team is responsible for assessing the level of threat by 
conducting student/parent interviews, reviewing all pertinent records, 
and following the threat assessment procedures.  

 

b. The threat assessment team must coordinate resources to provide 
intervention to individuals whose behavior may pose a threat to the 
safety of school staff or students consistent with the model policies 
developed by the Office of Safe Schools.   

 
c. The threat assessment team, at the direction of the school principal in 

Page 350 of 354

DRAFT



11 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

cooperation with Culture and Climate, must plan for the implementation 
and monitoring of appropriate interventions in order to manage or 
mitigate the student’s risk for engaging in violence and increasing the 
likelihood of positive outcomes.  

 
d. Interventions should remain in place until the team assesses that the 

student is no longer in need of support and does not pose a threat to self 
or others. 

 
e. Threat assessment teams should use referrals to school-based, 

community, and/or health care providers for mental health services, 
evaluation, or treatment.  

 
K. If an immediate mental health or substance abuse crisis is suspected, 

school personnel must follow policies established by the threat assessment 
team to engage behavioral health crisis resources.  As provided by s. 
1006.07(7)(e), Florida Statute.  

 
L.  All threat assessment outcomes and recommendations must be reported 

to the school principal. The school principal will review the documentation 
for all threat assessments to ensure completeness.  The school principal 
will sign/acknowledge that the threat assessment documentation 
(CSTAG or other school based documents) is complete and will forward 
the signed/acknowledged assessment to the Office of School Safety 
Specialist, via the school SRO, a copy to the Office of Climate and 
Culture and a working copy for school based interventions. In addition, 
upon a preliminary determination that a student poses a threat of 
violence or physical harm to self or others, the threat assessment team 
must immediately report its determination to school principal or his/her 
administrative designee. The principal or his/her administrative designee 
shall immediately attempt to notify the student’s parent or legal guardian.  

 
M. Nothing in this policy shall prevent school personnel from acting 

immediately to address an imminent threat. Where an immediate 
threat to life or physical safety exists, reports must result in an 
immediate notification to law enforcement.  

  
N. Nothing in this policy shall prevent the threat assessment team from 

notifying the school principal, his/her administrative designee of any 
individual (other than a student) who poses a threat of violence or 
physical harm to self or others.   

 
O. If an immediate mental health or substance abuse crisis is suspected, 

school personnel shall follow policies to engage behavioral health crisis 
resources, including, but not limited to, mobile response teams (MRT) 
from Clay Behavioral and school resource officers, who have been 
trained in crisis intervention. These individuals shall provide emergency 
intervention and assessment, make recommendations, and refer the 
student for appropriate services. Threat assessment teams shall 
contact other agencies involved with the student and any known service 
providers to share information and coordinate necessary follow up. Any 
information from education records disclosed during this process shall 

Page 351 of 354

DRAFT



12 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

be done in accordance with The Family Educational Rights and Privacy 
Act (FERPA) (34 CFR 99.31(10), 99.36). 

 
P. The threat assessment team, such as the school counselor, shall identify 

members of the school community to whom threatening behavior should 
be reported and provide guidance to students, faculty, and staff regarding 
recognition of threatening or aberrant behavior that may represent a 
threat to the community, school, or self.  

 
Q. School Based employees, volunteers, and contractors are required to 

report to school administration any expressed threat(s) or behavior(s) 
that may represent a threat to the community, school, or self.  

 
R.  Regardless of threat assessment activities, disciplinary action and 

referral to law enforcement are to occur as required by law and Board 
policies  

 
S.  Upon a preliminary determination by the threat assessment team that an 

individual poses a threat, members of the threat assessment team may 
request and obtain criminal history record information in accordance with 
1006.07(7)(c), F.S., and s. 985.04(1), F.S  

 
a. No member of a threat assessment team shall disclose any criminal 

history record information or health information obtained or use any 
record of an individual beyond the purpose for which such disclosure 
was made to the threat assessment team.  

 

b. The threat assessment team may not maintain the criminal history 
record or place it in the student’s educational file.  

 
T. The threat assessment team must consult with law enforcement when a 

student exhibits a pattern of behavior, based upon previous acts, or the 
severity of an act, that would pose a threat to school safety.  

 
U.  If a student commits more than one misdemeanor that is known to the 

school, the threat assessment team must consult with law enforcement to 
determine if further action is warranted.  

 
V. If a student is facing possible expulsion or suspension as a consequence 

of certain actions, the school should consider ways in which these can be 
safely enacted and identify resources that may assist the student during 
this time. In addition, a threat assessment team may use alternatives to 
expulsion or referral to law enforcement agencies unless the use of such 
alternatives will pose a threat to school safety. 

 
W. Threat assessment records are considered education records and shall be 

maintained and released in accordance with FERPA and state statute.  
 
X.  Threat assessment teams should meet regularly to discuss new and 

ongoing cases. 
  
Y.  Threat assessment teams should identify all means of reporting threats, including 

Page 352 of 354

DRAFT



13 
School Board Policy 9.18 Threat Assessment 

 

FortifyFL (the statewide mobile suspicious activity reporting tool) and any similar 
reporting tools required by state law. Local hotlines, websites or other community- 
based resources should also be identified.  

 
a. Threat assessment records are required to be transferred when a student 

transfers school. Verified reports of serious or recurrent behavior 
patterns, including threat assessment evaluations and intervention 
services, must be transferred within three school days when a student 
transfers from school to school, pursuant to s.  1003.25, F.S. and Rule 
6A-1.0955, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.). Records shall be 
transferred when a student progresses from elementary school to middle 
school, or from middle school to high school.  

 
b. Every section of the CSTAG form is not required to be completed. 

Threat assessment teams should use their judgment as to what is 
appropriate to be completed for each assessment and intervention in 
accordance with district policies and the corresponding level of the 
threat. 

 
 

Page 353 of 354

DRAFT



Page 354 of 354

DRAFT


